
 
 

AMENDED 

SUSAN T. ERTMER 

Winnebago County Clerk 

112 Otter Avenue, P.O. Box 2806 

Oshkosh, WI  54903-2806  
 

NOTICE OF COMMISSION, BOARD OR COMMITTEE MEETING 

Name of Committee:  Parks & Recreation Committee 

Date & Time of Meeting: Monday, September 26th, 2022 at 3:30 p.m. 

    Begin Meeting at:  4650 Jackson Street 

       Oshkosh, WI 54901 

    Multiple Addresses – See Below 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89474755049?pwd=RDRPWXJQUFNIb2JXbUxUMkNPaEEyZz09 

 

Meeting ID: 894 7475 5049 

Passcode: 201453 

One tap mobile 

+13092053325,,89474755049#,,,,*201453# US 

+13126266799,,89474755049#,,,,*201453# US (Chicago) 

 

SUBJECT MATTER OF THE MEETING 

 

1. Call to order 
 

2. Approval of Agenda 

 

3. Site Visit – BMX Site Visit – Sunnyview Expo Center – 3:30pm – 4:00pm 

ADDRESS OF SITE VISIT: 4650 Jackson Street, Oshkosh WI, 54901 

 

4. Travel to Coughlin Building Room B – Reconvene Meeting at 4:15pm 

ADDRESS OF COUGHLIN BUILDING: 625 E Cty Rd Y, Oshkosh, WI 54901 
 

5. Approval of July 26th, 2022 Minutes 
 

6. Public Comment 

 

7. Discussion/Decision – 2022 – 2027 BMX Contract 

 

8. Update – Sunnyview Exposition Center East Campus Improvements 

 

9. Discussion/Decision – Notice of Intent to Acquire a WI DOT Parcel Located Adjacent to the 

WIOUWASH TRAIL.  

 

10. Presentation – Parks Department Executive Operational Budget Overview 

 

11. Staff Updates: 
 

12. Committee Member’s Updates: 
 

13. Next Meeting Date: 
 

14. Future Agenda Items:  

 



• 2023 – 2027 Parks Capital Improvement Plan 

• 2023 – 2024 Sunnyview Expo Utility Fees 

 

15. Adjournment 
 

**This meeting is also being posted as a Committee meeting for: 

• Information Systems 

 
Upon request, provisions will be made for people with disabilities upon 24 hours prior notice to the 

Office of the County Clerk.   Phone Number:  232-3430. 



Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting Minutes 
Date & Time of Meeting: Monday, August 22, 2022 at 3:30 p.m. 
J.P. Coughlin Center, meeting room B 
 
Present: Mike Norton, Jim Ponzer, Karen Powers, Steve Binder, Rachael Dowling 
Also Present: Adam Breest, Rick Helms, Justin DeJager, Supervisor Cox 
 

1. Call to order: 
 

Mike Norton called the meeting to order at 3:34 p.m. 
 

2. Approval of Agenda: 
 

Jim Ponzer moved to approve the agenda and Rachel Dowling seconded. 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 

3. Approval of July 26, 2022 Minutes: 
 

Steve Binder moved to approve the minutes and Jim Ponzer seconded. 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 

4. Public Comment: 
 

Tom Egan – Spoke about the Pepsi and ATM agreement. Concerned about Park's Committee 
citizen member. 
 

5. Discussion/Action – 4H Use of Sunnyview Exposition Center Agreement 
 
Discussed changes to the agreement, which include allowing 4H to use the Expo free of charge 
for three horse shows a year. This eliminates the $480 one-time fee 4H had been paying to use 
the facility each year for the horse shows. 
 
Steve Binder made a motion to approve the Winnebago County 4H Sunnyview Exposition Center 
Policy Statement as written. Racheal Dowling seconded. The motion carried 5-0. 
 

6. Update – Access to Lake Butte des Morts - Town of Oshkosh 
 
The Parks Department reached out to the DOT and inquired about the land parcel located along 
the Wiouwash Trail and lake Butte des Morts Road. It will be about five to nine months for the 
DOT to process the request. Concerns about ATVs driving on the trail, maintenance, and funding 
were discussed. 
 

7. Discussion/Action – Grundman Boat Landing Capital Project Request 
 
Design items that have changed include larger septic tank, well, and dredging the inner channel. 
Discussed project budget and DNR grant. 
 



Karen Powers made a motion to authorize the Winnebago County Parks Department to execute 
the Grundman Boat Landing improvement and renovation project in the amount of $1,791,500 
with Winnebago County providing $548,187.50 to be funded with either a transfer from the 
undesignated general fund balance, or with a subsequent bond issue. Jim Ponzer Seconded. The 
motion carried 5-0. 
 

8. Discussion/Action – Parks Committee Citizen Member 
 
Discussed pros and cons of a citizen member. Could be difficult to find, six is not an ideal 
number of members. No action was taken 
 

9. Discussion/Action – 2022 – 2027 Pepsi Agreement 
 
Discussed updates to the agreement, which included: donation to Parks increased, product 
pricing decreased, prices increases capped at 5%. Discussed the free 100 cases of water. 
 
Rachel Dowling made a motion to approve the five-year agreement between Pepsi and the 
Winnebago County Parks Department. Steve Binder seconded. The motion carried 5-0. 
 

10. Staff Updates: 
 

Adam Breest – Staff had a good summer. Seasonal staff is now down to two. Highway 
Department is shouldering areas at the Community Park. The southern parking lots have been 
paved. Parking lot work will continue next year. Wiouwash Trail resurfacing is almost complete. 
Waukau Dam parking lot has been chip-sealed. August storm damage is fully cleaned up. Asylum 
bridge approach nearly complete. Wayfinding signs and lighting has been installed at Jerry Finch 
Dog Park. Met with County Executive on 2023 budget. 
 
Rick Helms – Summer season slowing down. Construction project pretty much wrapped up, just 
a little landscaping needs to be completed. Highway paving around barns and doing 
draining/ditch work, which will help with clean-up. New event coming next year with Oshkosh 
Corp. 
 
Discussed milk house at the expo. 
 
Justin DeJager – Commercials are running on Cumulus stations. Starting monthly radio 
interviews next month. a $5,000 sponsorship from Lapham-Hickey Steel for next year's park 
programs. County-wide Facebook page set to launch September 1. 

 

11. Committee Member’s Updates: 
 
Mike Norton – Mentioned sharing a lawnmower with Parkview. Questioned when expo arch is 
going up, maybe in 2024. Health Department is being charged weekly to rent the Expo for 
testing/vaccinations. 
 
Rachael Dowling – No comment. 
 



Jim Ponzer – No comment. 
 
Karen Powers – No comment. 
 
Steve Binder – Asked about paving at Finch Dog park, will not be paved this year. Areas near 
parking lots in Community Park need crack sealing. 
 

12. Next Meeting Date: 
 
September 26 at 3:30 p.m. beginning at Winnebagoland BMX, then moving to Coughlin Center. 
 

13. Future Agenda Items:  
 

• 2023-2024 Sunnyview Exposition Center Utility Fee 

• BMX Five-Year Contract 

• Survey results 

• Milk house update 
 

14. Adjournment 
 
Steve Binder made the motion to adjourn and it was seconded by Rachel Dowling. The motion 
carried 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 5:10 p.m. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Justin DeJager 

 



Winnebago County Parks Survey for County Board: Results (12 Responses) 

 

What type of activities do you use Winnebago County parks and park facilities for? 

• boat launches, trail walking 

• running 

• soccer, hiking, biking, hunting  

• playing with grandchildren and social events 

• nature observation and recreation 

• sight seeing 

• attend gatherings, go walking 

• fair 

• fairgrounds 

• community events 

 

What amenities within the Winnebago County Parks system are most important to you? 

• open space 

• trails and docks 

• availability to public 

• cleanliness 

• natural areas 

• clean facilities 

• trees and places to sit (drinking fountains, restrooms are always important) 

• children's activities 

• Sunnyview 

• fairgrounds 

• shelters, athletic fields, and trails 

 



What does the Parks Department do well? 

• promotes the Wiouwash Trail 

• keeping the grounds clean 

• made advancements in the last 30 years 

• keeping the parks clean and inviting 

• mows lawn regularly 

• the amount of parks is good 

• dog parks 

• Sunnyview 

• fairgrounds 

• excellent trail system and taking care of many facilities with limited resources 

 

What can the Parks Department improve on? 

• stop spending on land improvements at Expo Center 

• posting hours  

• charge more for Sunnyview - you give the space away  

• replacing old rusted fencing 

• pay employees more money 

• collaborate with Solid Waste Management Board on the green space over there, advertise 

• keep updating the facilities 

• do more upgrades for other than horse shows 

• publicizing their facilities to the public 

• informing the public of its features and more programs 

 

What is the greatest need for the Winnebago County Parks system? 

• more events on expo grounds 

• more awareness 

• promotion  

• if the park has fencing, make sure the fences don't have the bottoms poking up and injuring 

someone 

• more and better restrooms 

• collaborate with Solid Waste Management Board on green space 

• keep updating facilities 

• roads, parking lots, and weeds pulled 

• boat launching and fishing 

• staying current 

• ability to adapt to community changes and wants 

 



What can the Parks Department do to increase the usage of Winnebago County parks and facilities? 

• advertise 

• better marketing 

• promotion  

• advertise 

• offer more family-oriented programs 

• simplify print media, include information in property tax bills 

• get the word out 

• do more for others than horse shows 

• social media 

• work with and get more partners 

 

 

 



 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 

Winnebago County 
The Wave of the Future 

 
 

DATE:  September 26, 2022 
FROM:  Parks and Expo Director 
RE: 5 Year Contract with the Winnebagoland BMX Inc. 
 

General Description: The Parks Department is interested in entering into a new 5-year contract with 

Winnebagoland BMX Inc.  

Requested Action:  

The Parks Department recommends that the Parks and Recreation Committee approves the 5-year 

contract between the Winnebago County Parks Department and the Winnebagoland BMX Inc. 

Procedural Steps: 

Parks and Recreation Committee  Meeting date:  9/26/22 
 Action taken:     Vote:   

 Personnel and Finance Committee  Meeting Date: 10/6/22 

 Action Taken     Vote: 

 County Board     Meeting Date:  10/18/22 

 Action Taken     Vote: 

Background: 

The Winnebago County Parks Department has had a contract with the Winnebagoland BMX for over 37 

years. The Winnebagoland BMX operates and maintains the BMX track located on the Sunnyview 

Exposition Center grounds. The club performs all of the maintenance to the track and the club house. 

The County is responsible for providing utilities to the club house.  

Justification: 

The Winnebagoland BMX provides a unique activity to the residents of Winnebago County. This club 

provides programming opportunities to kids of all abilities. The cost to Winnebago County is minimal 

with minimal maintenance needed. The track located at the Sunnyview Expo Center is one of the best 

tracks in the state. The Winnebagoland BMX hosts the state championship at their track. This brings in 

visitors and guests from all around the state. 

Attachments: 

• 2022 – 2026 Agreement between Winnebagoland BMX Inc. and Winnebago County.  

• Resolution to Approve the contract between Winnebagoland BMX Inc. and Winnebago 

County. 



Resolution Number: 181-062021 Page 1  

1   

2 RESOLUTION: Authorize 5 Year Agreement between the Winnebagoland BMX Inc. 
and Winnebago County 

3   
4   

5   

6 TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 

7 WHEREAS, Winnebago County has been approached by Winnebagoland BMX Inc. to enter into a  

8 five (5) year facility use agreement for property located on the exposition center grounds and 

9 recognized as the BMX track and clubhouse; and, 

10 WHEREAS, for more than thirty-seven (37) years Winnebagoland BMX has been a tenant in good  

11 standing with the County and over time has managed to greatly improve the quality and value of the  

12 facilities it occupies while drawing very little material or financial support from the County; and, 

13 WHEREAS, Winnebagoland BMX performs a tremendous service to the community by providing  

14 quality BMX biking opportunities to the youth of Winnebago County; and, 

15 WHEREAS, Winnebagoland BMX plays a significant role in attracting visitors to the area through  

16 an ambition schedule of BMX competitions and events that draw interest from parties across the 

17 state and throughout the upper mid-west and,  

18 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Winnebago County to help accommodate the long range  

19 scheduling of said events by allowing Winnebagoland BMX to secure essential programming agreements  

20 well ahead of time with the various state, regional, and national sanctioning bodies. 

23 

24 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it  

25 hereby authorizes the Winnebago County Parks Department to enter into a five (5) year use  

26 agreement with Winnebagoland BMX so that the organization may continue to promote the wide  

27 ranging physical and social benefits made available to area youth through BMX program activities. 

29 

30 Fiscal note: Similar to other youth sports organizations who conduct programming on Parks properties,  

31 Winnebagoland BMX is not charged for use of County facilities. In addition, Winnebagoland BMX pays for  

32 all utility fees associated with the BMX track and clubhouse. 

33  

33 

34 Respectfully Submitted by, 

35 Committee Vote: PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 

36 

37 



Resolution Number: 181-062021 Page 2  

38 

39 
 

40 

41 Committee Vote:  

42 

Respectfully Submitted by, 

 
 
PERSONNEL & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

43 Vote Requirement for Passage: Majority 

44 Approved by Winnebago County Executive this  day of  , 2022. 

45 
 

46 
 

47 Jonathan D. Doemel 
48 Winnebago County Executive 

49 

50 

51 



SUNNYVIEW EXPOSITION CENTER 
RENTAL AGREEMENT 

 
CONTRACT NO. EC111622M

RENTAL AGREEMENT by and between Winnebagoland BMX, Inc. c/o Rick Von Holzen, 4684 Ulman Street, 1 

Oshkosh, WI 54904; (920) 379-1833 (hereinafter referred to as the "LESSEE", whether one or more) and 2 

Winnebago County, 415 Jackson St., Oshkosh, Wisconsin 54901 (hereinafter referred to as "LESSOR"). 3 

LESSEE and LESSOR, for and in consideration of their respective obligations hereinafter contained, agree as 4 

follows: 5 

1. PREMISES. LESSOR hereby rents to LESSEE, upon the terms and conditions of this Rental 6 

Agreement, the following premises located on or adjacent to the Sunnyview Exposition Center: 7 

Winnebagoland BMX Clubhouse and Track Area (see attached map). (hereinafter referred to as 8 

the "PREMISES"). 9 

2. TERM. The term of this Rental Agreement shall be five years and shall commence on November 10 

16, 2022 at 7 A.M. and shall terminate on November 16, 2027 at 11 P.M. No events will be 11 

allowed to take place during set-up days, event days or take-down days of the annual Lifest 12 

Music Festival or the annual Winnebago County Fair. 13 

3. RENTAL FEES. The rental fee for the PREMISES shall be as follows: no charge. 14 

4. PARKING, CLEAN UP, TRAFFIC & TOILET FACILITIES. 15 

A. LESSEE shall have the right to use the parking facilities located within the PREMISES (see 16 

Section 1 and attached map). 17 

B. LESSEE shall restrict vehicles from parking along the shoulder on either side of the 18 

Annex main service road. 19 

C. LESSEE shall furnish a clean-up crew so that the PREMISES is free and clear of any and all 20 

debris whatsoever at the termination of each race day. 21 

D. LESSEE shall provide pumping of the sewage holding tank by a licensed pumper. All 22 

charges due for pumping of sewage shall be paid for by LESSEE. 23 

E. During the term of this Rental Agreement, LESSEE shall have access to the PREMISES 24 



throughout the calendar year for purposes of set up, clean up, and maintenance 25 

activities related to this Rental Agreement. 26 

F. LESSEE shall have permission to store and maintain motorized and non-motorized 27 

equipment within the PREMISES. However, said equipment shall be directly related to 28 

the care and upkeep of the PREMISES and in working order. LESSEE shall have 29 

permission to store a maximum of five pieces of motorized or non-motorized equipment 30 

within the boundaries of the PREMISES during the months of April through November 31 

and three pieces of such equipment during the months of December through March for 32 

each calendar year. All other equipment and materials are to be stored inside the 33 

building when not in use (see attached map). At LESSOR’S request, LESSEE may be 34 

required to relocate said equipment to a specified site in order to facilitate other 35 

activities to be held on the PREMISES. LESSEE shall be obligated to expedite such 36 

requests at the sole expense of the LESSEE. 37 

5. EXCLUSIVE USE OF TRACK. LESSEE shall have exclusive use of the BMX track for BMX races and 38 

other LESSEE related activities. No other party shall be permitted to conduct any track activity that 39 

lies outside the purview of LESSEE unless prior approval of such activities has been granted by 40 

both LESSEE and LESSOR through mutual agreement reached a minimum of 30 days prior to said 41 

activity. The LESSOR shall be responsible for producing a written record, co-signed by LESSEE and 42 

LESSOR which shall serve to validate the aforementioned mutual agreement. LESSEE shall use the 43 

PREMISES for the purpose of conducting BMX races and activities related to LESSEE’S 44 

programming. LESSEE shall not use the PREMISES for any purpose other than as stated herein. 45 

LESSEE shall comply with all state and federal laws, rules, and regulations, all applicable municipal 46 

ordinances, ADA requirements, and all Expo Policies enacted by Administrative Directive in the use 47 

of the PREMISES including, but not limited to, recycling ordinances (see Exhibits B and C). In 48 

addition, LESSEE shall abide by and conform with all rules and regulations adopted or prescribed 49 

from time to time by the LESSOR for the PREMISES. LESSEE shall indemnify and hold LESSOR 50 

harmless for any violation by LESSEE of any law, rule, regulation, or ordinance while using the 51 



PREMISES. 52 

6. MAINTENANCE & OPERATION. During the term of this agreement: 53 

A. LESSEE shall, at its own expense and at all times during the term of this agreement keep 54 

the PREMISES, including parking areas, clean and well-maintained. LESSEE shall not injure, 55 

nor in any way deface the PREMISES or cause or permit the same to be done, and shall 56 

not drive or permit others to drive nails, hooks, tacks or screws into any part of any 57 

building demised hereunder. LESSEE shall not affix or allow others to affix adhesive tape of 58 

any kind to any ceiling, floor, wall, glass or table surface. LESSEE shall make no alterations 59 

of any kind to the PREMISES without the prior written consent of LESSOR. 60 

B. LESSEE shall not do or permit to be done anything in or upon any portion of the PREMISES 61 

or bring or keep anything therein or thereupon which shall in any way conflict with the 62 

conditions of any insurance policy upon the building or any part thereof or in any way 63 

increase any rate of insurance upon the buildings and/or grounds or on property kept 64 

therein. 65 

C. LESSEE shall not, without the written consent of the LESSOR, put up or operate any engine 66 

or motor or machinery on the PREMISES or use oils, burning fluids, camphene, kerosene, 67 

naphtha or gasoline for either mechanical or other purposes, or any agent other than gas 68 

or electricity for illuminating the PREMISES. 69 

D. LESSEE shall not post or exhibit or allow to be posted or exhibited signs, advertisements, 70 

showbills, lithographs, posters or cards of any description inside or in front of or on any 71 

part of the buildings, except upon the regular billboards provided by the LESSOR 72 

therefore, and then only such as relates to the performance or exhibition to be given on 73 

the PREMISES. LESSEE shall take down and remove forthwith all signs, advertisements, 74 

showbills, lithographs, posters or cards of any description objected to by the LESSOR'S 75 

Manager. 76 

E. LESSEE shall not admit to said PREMISES a larger number of persons than can safely or 77 

freely move about in the PREMISES and the decision of the LESSOR'S Manager in this 78 



respect shall be final. LESSEE will permit no chair or movable seat to be or remain in the 79 

passageway and shall keep passageways clear at all times. No portion of the sidewalks, 80 

entries, passages, vestibules, halls and stairways or access to public utilities or said 81 

buildings shall be obstructed by the LESSEE or used for any purpose other than ingress to 82 

and from the PREMISES. LESSEE shall at all times conform to City of Oshkosh Fire 83 

Department regulations relating to aisle widths and exit door accessibility. LESSEE shall be 84 

responsible for obtaining knowledge of said regulations. Doors, skylights, stairways or 85 

openings that reflect or admit light into any place in the buildings, and house lighting 86 

attachments shall not be covered or obstructed by the LESSEE. The water closets or other 87 

water apparatus shall not be used for any other purpose other than that for which they 88 

were constructed, and no sweepings, rubbish, rags, papers or other substances shall be 89 

thrown  therein. Any damage resulting to them from misuse of any nature or character 90 

whatever shall be paid for by the LESSEE. 91 

F. Smoking is not allowed within any building within the boundaries of the exposition center. 92 

G. LESSEE shall announce the location of fire exits 10 minutes before the start of each 93 

program whenever feasible. See attached Winnebago County Parks Exposition Center Fire 94 

Safety Plan and Fire Evacuation Plan. 95 

H. Within 30 days prior to the EVENT, the PROVIDER shall represent and warrant that it has 96 

entered into valid music performing rights agreements with ASCAP, BMI, SESAC applicable 97 

to music performed on the PREMISES and covering the EVENT hereunder. 98 

I. Throughout the event LESSEE shall not be permitted to locate either on or outside the 99 

PREMISES any type of mechanized aircraft that is to be used as an ongoing passenger 100 

flight attraction. Said prohibition shall not prevent LESSEE from conducting balloon 101 

passenger flights or from using aircraft for demonstration, display or transport purposes. 102 

J. At the end of the term of this agreement, LESSEE shall quit and surrender the PREMISES in 103 

the same condition as at the commencement of the term, ordinary wear and tear 104 

excepted. 105 



7. LESSOR OBLIGATIONS. LESSOR agrees as follows: 106 

A. Exterior Facility Maintenance 107 

i. To maintain the road and parking lot areas. 108 

ii. To maintain the fence structures surrounding the area. 109 

B. Clubhouse Electrical Maintenance 110 

i. To maintain and modify the mainline electrical circuitry entering the Clubhouse 111 

building up to and including all fuse box, relay, and breaker receptacles. 112 

C. Clubhouse Plumbing Maintenance 113 

i. To maintain and modify only those water and sanitary sewer facilities located on 114 

the sublevel of the Clubhouse building and to be the only party involved in the 115 

seasonal start-up and shutdown of the building water systems. 116 

D. Maintenance of Lawn 117 

i. Maintain the lawn areas surrounding the PREMISES. 118 

E. Picnic Tables and Bleachers 119 

i. Provide two picnic tables for use in the spectator area and one ADA compliant set 120 

of portable bleachers. 121 

8. CONCESSIONS. 122 

A. LESSEE shall have the right to sell the following during its use of the PREMISES and for the 123 

term of this agreement: soda, water, snacks, hot and cold sandwiches and similar items. 124 

No other articles, other than those listed herein, shall be sold by LESSEE without the 125 

expressed written consent of the LESSOR. Alcoholic beverages will not be allowed. 126 

LESSEE shall secure all necessary permits required for the sale of the aforementioned 127 

concessions from the City of Oshkosh/Winnebago County and provide proof of such 128 

permits to the LESSOR. 129 

B. LESSEE shall not post "Out of Order" notices or unplug any vending machines on the 130 

PREMISES unless permission to do so has been granted by the LESSOR. Said machines are 131 

under the control of LESSOR and shall not be tampered with. 132 



C. All vendors shall be required to dispose of used grease, gray water and black water in 133 

the appropriate receptacles. Vendors who do not comply with sanitary rules shall be 134 

expelled from the PREMISES and a citation shall be issued to the LESSEE by the 135 

Winnebago County Health Department. 136 

D. LESSEE shall provide or have concessionaire provide public liability insurance, including 137 

products liability, in minimum amounts of $300,000/$500,000 and $50,000 property 138 

damage, and workers' compensation insurance as required by Wisconsin Law. 139 

Certificates of insurance coverage as herein indicated shall include a 30-day notice of 140 

cancellation to the LESSOR. 141 

E. No glass containers shall be sold by concessionaire and no alcoholic or fermented malt 142 

beverages shall be sold by concessionaire. 143 

9. INSURANCE. LESSEE shall, at its own expense, obtain insurance in accordance with Exhibit A and 144 

items A and B below, shall provide proof of such insurance 30 days prior to any event taking place. 145 

The provisions of this contract and any duties placed upon LESSOR as a result thereof shall be null 146 

and void in the absence of LESSEE'S provision of a certificate of insurance indicating that coverage 147 

as is required herein. 148 

A. Race Participants 149 

i. It shall be the sole responsibility of LESSEE to ensure that all race  participants are 150 

American Bicycle Association (ABA) members, that all bicycles are equipped in 151 

accordance with ABA standards, that all participants are wearing ABA approved 152 

equipment and that ABA rules are followed during races. 153 

ii. No persons under the age of 18 shall use the LESSOR’S facility pursuant to this 154 

Agreement absent supervision by an adult representative of WINNEBAGOLAND 155 

BMX, Inc. 156 

iii. No persons under the age of 18 shall use the LESSOR’S facility pursuant to this 157 

Agreement under the supervision of LESSEE unless the minor's parent, custodian 158 

or guardian is present or, in the alternative, the parent, custodian or guardian 159 



provides written permission to LESSEE to allow the minor to participate in 160 

activities supervised by LESSEE at the LESSOR’S facility. 161 

iv. LESSEE agrees to include the LESSOR on any waiver and release form signed by 162 

participants active in any LESSEE practices, special events or tournaments. 163 

B. Insurance: Hold Harmless 164 

i. LESSEE shall furnish certificates of insurance including the following minimum 165 

insurance coverages: 166 

a. $1,000,000 Spectator Liability coverage, naming Winnebago County as an 167 

additional insured. 168 

b. $1,000,000 24-hour Public Liability insurance naming Winnebago County 169 

as an additional insured. 170 

c. $1,000,000 Rider Liability coverage for all participants. 171 

ii. To include in such insurance coverages a 30-day notice of cancellation in writing 172 

to the LESSOR’S Insurance Administrator, c/o Courthouse, Oshkosh, WI, 54901. 173 

iii. To release the LESSOR from all claims, demands and actions whatsoever which 174 

may arise from such races, and to hold the LESSOR harmless from any and all 175 

claims for injuries and damages which may arise from any such event. 176 

10. UTILITIES. LESSEE shall be responsible for payment of all utility services and/or special 177 

assessments associated with Clubhouse and BMX track operations (i.e. security, electrical, storm 178 

water run-off, concessions and HVAC systems).Prior to January 30, of each calendar year of the 179 

Rental Agreement lease term, LESSOR shall submit an invoice to LESSEE indicating the 180 

cumulative amount of payment due the LESSOR as reimbursement for utility costs or 181 

assessments incurred over the term of this Agreement. LESSEE shall have 30 working days from 182 

receipt of said invoice in which to pay the LESSOR the full amount due. 183 

11. DIGGERS HOTLINE. 184 

A. LESSEE shall be responsible for contacting Diggers Hotline and/or other utility line locator 185 

agencies to locate all utility lines on the rented PREMISES (as defined in Section 1 - 186 



PREMISES) if LESSEE, its vendors, agents, servants or employees shall be inserting into the 187 

ground tent stakes, posts, poles, or other below grade appurtenances. Failure of LESSEE to 188 

locate utility lines shall obligate LESSEE to repair or replace any damaged utility line at 189 

LESSEE'S sole expense and to reimburse LESSOR for any lost revenue or damages of any 190 

kind. 191 

B. LESSEE shall be responsible for the filling of all holes drilled or dug into asphalt surfaces on 192 

the PREMISIS to accommodate tent or fence posts or supports. Said holes shall be filled 193 

within three working days following the final event day to LESSOR’S satisfaction via 194 

LESSOR approved method. Holes left unfilled after the aforementioned deadline will be 195 

filled by LESSOR at LESSEE’S expense. 196 

12. INDEMNIFICATION. 197 

A. The LESSOR shall not be responsible for any damage, or injury incurred by the LESSEE or 198 

LESSEES' agents, servants, employees or property, from any cause, prior, during or 199 

subsequent to the term of this agreement. Likewise, the LESSOR shall not be responsible 200 

for any damage, loss, or liability of any kind and nature, occurring on the PREMISES, the 201 

property adjacent thereto and any other portion of the Sunnyview Exposition Center 202 

and/or Sunnyview Annex, by reason of any bodily injury to or death of any person, or by 203 

reason of any damage to property of third persons occasioned by any act or omission, 204 

neglect or wrongdoing of LESSEE, or any of its officers, agents, representatives, assigns, 205 

guests, employees, invitees, or persons admitted by the LESSEE to said PREMISES, arising 206 

out of the activities conducted by LESSEE, its agents, members or guests (including claims 207 

of employees of LESSEE or of any contractor or subcontractor). LESSEE shall indemnify, 208 

hold the LESSOR harmless and shall defend and protect the LESSOR from any claim, loss, 209 

demand or liability arising out of any bodily injury or property damage as described 210 

herein, provided that LESSEE shall not be responsible for any injury or damages resulting 211 

solely from the negligence of the LESSOR. 212 

B. LESSEE shall be liable for any costs incurred by LESSOR or loss of revenues by LESSOR as a 213 



result of damages to the PREMISES leased herein occasioned by any act or omission, 214 

neglect or wrongdoing of LESSEE or any of its officers, agents, representatives, assigns, 215 

guests, employees, invites, or persons admitted by the LESSEE to said PREMISES, arising 216 

out of the activities conducted by LESSEE, its agents, members or guests (including claims 217 

of employees of LESSEE or of any contractor or subcontractor), or as a result of LESSEE 218 

holding over upon the leased PREMISES. Said costs shall include any attorney's fees and 219 

costs incurred by LESSOR in association with the litigation of such matter. 220 

13. MISCELLANEOUS. 221 

A. Rules. LESSEE acknowledges that it has read, understood and accepts all rules and 222 

regulations of the LESSOR with respect to the PREMISES. 223 

B. Binding Agreement. This agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 224 

respective parties, their successors and assigns, heirs and personal representatives, except 225 

as otherwise expressly provided herein. 226 

C. Waiver, Change or Modification. This agreement may not be changed orally, but only an 227 

agreement in writing, and signed by the party against whom enforcement of any waiver, 228 

change, modification or discharge is sought. 229 

D. Applicable Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be construed pursuant to and 230 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin. 231 

E. The LESSOR does not guarantee any revenues to LESSEE pursuant to this agreement, and 232 

shall not be liable for payment to LESSEE for any revenues, either real or perceived, not 233 

obtained by LESSEE due to inclement weather, traffic conditions, subcontractor or vendor 234 

cancellation, or any other circumstance occurring during LESSEE'S occupation of the 235 

PREMISES. 236 

F. Inclement weather shall not negate LESSEE'S duty to pay LESSOR pursuant to this 237 

Agreement or entitle LESSEE to a rebate from LESSOR. 238 

G. Termination. 239 

i. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 30 days advance 240 



written notice. Once written notice has been present by either party it shall be 241 

incumbent upon LESSEE to make arrangements with the LESSOR to turn over all 242 

keys related to the PREMISES. Further, upon notification of termination, LESSEE 243 

shall have 30 days in which to remove all equipment and supplies it may have 244 

stored at the PREMISES. Should LESSEE fail to remove said equipment and 245 

supplies from storage at the PREMISES, the LESSOR shall proceed in disposing of 246 

any and all items as it sees fit. 247 

ii. Failure on the part of either LESSEE or LESSOR to perform any of the terms and 248 

covenants and conditions indicated in the Agreement shall, at the option of the 249 

other party, constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement. 250 

H. Mortgages & Subordination. In the event that LESSEE encumbers the PREMISES, or any 251 

other property owned by LESSOR said encumbrance shall be cause for immediate 252 

termination of this Agreement by LESSOR. Further LESSEE agrees that in the event of 253 

such an encumbrance, it shall remove or cause to be removed, at no expense to 254 

LESSOR, said encumbrance and shall do so immediately. LESSEE further agrees that in 255 

the event such an encumbrance damages LESSOR in any way, LESSEE shall on demand 256 

reimburse LESSOR in full for said damages. 257 

I. Condemnation. If at any time during the term hereof the whole of the PREMISES, or any 258 

part of thereof, shall be taken for any public or quasi public use, under any statute, or by 259 

right of  eminent domain, then, in such event, when possession of the demised site shall 260 

have been taken thereunder by the condemning authority, the term hereby granted, 261 

and all rights of  LESSEE hereunder, shall immediately cease and terminate. 262 

J. Quiet Enjoyment. LESSOR covenants, warrants, and represents that it has full right and 263 

power to execute and perform this Agreement and to grant the PREMISES leased herein 264 

and that LESSEE upon performance of the covenants and agreements herein contained, 265 

shall peaceably  and quietly have, hold and enjoy the PREMISES during the full term of 266 

this Agreement. 267 



K. Winnebagoland Pricing Structures. Exclusive of pricing structures set according to age 268 

variations, LESSEE shall be restricted from instituting within its operations, any 269 

measures which serves to differentiate between monetary amounts paid by residents of 270 

Winnebago County for any services or materials rendered (i.e. membership dues). 271 

L. Severability. In the event that any provision herein contained is held to be invalid by any 272 

court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of any such provision shall in no way 273 

affect any other provision contained herein, provided that the validity of any such 274 

provisions does not materially prejudice either the LESSOR or LESSEE in their respective 275 

rights and obligations contained in the valid provisions of this Agreement. 276 

M. Easements. LESSOR hereby agrees that it shall grant LESSEE easements  necessary to 277 

supply utilities to the PREMISES. Determination of the origin and positioning of said 278 

easements within the PREMISES shall be at LESSOR’S sole discretion. Additionally, 279 

LESSOR reserves the right to access said easements at any future date for the purpose 280 

of providing improvements to the PREMISES. All construction costs associated with 281 

accessing utilities within said easements shall be borne by LESSOR however, LESSOR 282 

shall provide all rights of access to, as well as all rights for future use of such easements, 283 

at no charge, and with no encumbrances attached to said access or use by LESSOR. 284 

14. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. 285 

A. Receptacles, Recycling and Pickup 286 

i. LESSOR shall provide one, eight-yard trash receptacle and once a week pickup of 287 

the receptacle LESSOR shall arrange for contents of receptacle to be hauled to 288 

Winnebago County Solid Waste Landfill. Fees for rental of all receptacles shall be 289 

the sole responsibility of LESSEE. 290 

ii. LESSEE shall provide for recycling of recyclable materials produced at the 291 

PREMISES. LESSEE shall arrange for all such recyclable materials produced on the 292 

PREMISES to be hauled to the Winnebago County Recycling Facility. 293 

iii. All trash and/or recycling containers shall be located at the north west corner of 294 



the Clubhouse building. 295 

iv. LESSEE shall contract exclusively with the Winnebago County vendor for all 296 

receptacle and recycling container rental and hauling services. 297 

B. LESSEE shall ensure that all gray water and black water from camping units on the 298 

PREMISES shall be disposed of in the proper manner. Unlawful dumping of gray or black 299 

water onto the PREMISES will result in a citation from the Winnebago County Health 300 

Department to the LESSEE. 301 

C. LESSEE shall ensure that used charcoal, firewood and ash are disposed of in the proper 302 

receptacles placed on the PREMISES for this purpose. No firewood may be brought onto 303 

the PREMISES from a distance greater than 25 miles as per WDNR. Any firewood must be 304 

completely burned or removed from the PREMISES by the LESSEE at the termination of 305 

the event. 306 

D. LESSEE shall ensure that no washing of any animal shall be done outside of the washrack 307 

area provided on the PREMISES for this purpose. Washing of animals in an improper 308 

location shall result in a citation from the Winnebago County Health Department or the 309 

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources to the LESSEE. 310 

E. Facilities Usage 311 

i. Upon 60 days written notice, LESSEE will accommodate requests by the LESSOR to 312 

modify practices, races or special event activities in order to accommodate 313 

Exposition facilities programming. 314 

ii. At the conclusion of each day/night BMX activity, and prior to leaving the 315 

Sunnyview Expo Center grounds, LESSEE shall be responsible for shutting off all 316 

BMX related lighting systems and securing all locks, doors, windows, and gates 317 

that may have been used over the course of said day/night activity. 318 

F. Construction & Maintenance of Track 319 

i. LESSEE shall be totally responsible for construction of the track in the Exposition 320 

Annex. Should any such construction be performed by non-members of LESSEE 321 



or by contractors, such non-members or contractors shall comply with the 322 

insurance requirements contained in Section 9 of this Agreement. Said track 323 

shall be located approximately 400 yards west of the Grandstand and 100 yards 324 

east of Hwy 76. Said track shall be constructed to American Bicycle Association 325 

(ABA) Standards and shall be fully sanctioned by the ABA. 326 

ii. To be responsible for maintaining the track and outdoor lighting system prior to 327 

the races being run on the aforementioned dates. 328 

iii. To be responsible for all expenses incurred regarding any additional 329 

improvements on said track. Any improvements must be approved in writing by 330 

the Parks Director prior to implementation. If deemed necessary, LESSEE may be 331 

required to obtain additional insurance in order to provide adequate coverage 332 

for said improvements. 333 

iv. To keep all drainage points and ditch-lines free of debris. 334 

v. To preserve and not damage established water courses, tile drains, tile outlets, 335 

grass waterways, terraces, roads and parking lot surfaces. 336 

vi. To cut noxious weeds in the areas in and around the PREMISES and Clubhouse 337 

facilities before same are allowed to go to seed. 338 

vii. That all improvements made on said track shall become the property of the 339 

Winnebago County Parks Department (except for the starting gate) upon 340 

termination of this Agreement by either party. 341 

G. Maintenance, Repair & Improvements of PREMISES 342 

i. LESSEE shall be responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of both the 343 

exterior and interior portions of the BMX Clubhouse (i.e. HVAC systems, wall 344 

surfaces, trim and soffit areas, floor surfaces, appliances, and landscaping within 345 

a 50-foot perimeter around the building). 346 

ii. That all improvements shall be in compliance with all applicable state, county, 347 

and municipal code requirements. 348 



iii. That all improvements made to the interior and exterior of the Clubhouse 349 

building shall become the property of Winnebago County Parks Department 350 

upon termination of this Agreement by either party. 351 

iv. To provide for the installation and line charges for telephone service. 352 

v. To notify the LESSOR at least 30 days prior to beginning of seasonal use to allow 353 

County Plumber to prepare the plumbing system for use and to conduct a water 354 

test. Water shall not be used for consumption or cooking within the facility until 355 

such water test is completed and cleared of any contaminants that may be 356 

present. County Plumber shall shut down the plumbing system after the close of 357 

the BMX race season upon 30-day notification from LESSEE. 358 

vi. That LESSEE shall, at its sole expense, keep, maintain and repair such facilities 359 

within the PREMISES that it is hereto responsible for, in a good and well-360 

maintained condition consistent with sound business practice and in a manner, 361 

which will preserve, enhance and protect the general appearance and value of 362 

the Sunnyview Exposition Center grounds. Failure to maintain and repair shall 363 

be deemed a default under this Agreement. In the event LESSEE fails to properly 364 

maintain and repair said facilities, the LESSOR shall issue a written notice to 365 

LESSEE regarding its failure to maintain and repair. Said notice shall state with 366 

reasonable specificity: (1) the nature of LESSEE’S failure to keep, maintain or 367 

repair; and, (2) the remedy required by LESSEE to cure the default. In the event 368 

that LESSEE fails within 30 days after receipt of LESSOR’S default notification 369 

under this paragraph, to commence appropriate action to cure such default, 370 

LESSOR shall have the right thereafter, in its sole discretion, to terminate this 371 

Agreement immediately, or in the alternative, to cure said default in an 372 

efficient, effective, and good workmanlike manner, and to assess the costs 373 

thereof against LESSEE. LESSEE hereby agrees to pay any and all such 374 

assessments, including all costs, disbursements and reasonable attorney's fees 375 



incurred by LESSOR in curing said default within 30 days after LESSOR’S 376 

demand. 377 

vii. Supplemental toilet facilities shall be provided by LESSEE as deemed necessary 378 

by the LESSOR. 379 

H. Assignment Transfer & Liens 380 

i. LESSEE agrees it will not assign or transfer this Agreement without prior written 381 

consent of the LESSOR. 382 

ii. LESSEE agrees to promptly pay all sums legally due and payable on account of 383 

any labor it has performed on or materials it has furnished for the PREMISES. 384 

LESSEE shall not permit any liens to be placed against the PREMISES on account 385 

of labor performed or material furnished and in the event such a lien is placed 386 

against the PREMISES, LESSEE agrees to hold LESSOR harmless from any and all 387 

such asserted claims and liens and to remove or cause to be removed any and 388 

all such asserted claims or liens within 120 days. Failure to comply with this 389 

paragraph shall be cause for immediate termination of this Agreement. 390 

I. Signage 391 

i. LESSEE shall be permitted to mount a total of two signs identifying 392 

Winnebagoland BMX. One sign shall be permitted on the west exterior wall of 393 

the Clubhouse building. The other sign shall be permitted to be securely 394 

mounted to the roof of the BMX Clubhouse building. Both signs shall be limited 395 

to a maximum of 175 square-feet in size. 396 

ii. Advertising or promotional placards, banners, signs or posters may be displayed 397 

no more than one week prior to any specific racing tournament or special event. 398 

Said materials may be displayed both within the PREMISES and/or on either side 399 

of the four-foot high fence located on the west site of the PREMISES. All materials 400 

shall be removed within one day following the conclusion of the racing 401 

tournament or special event. 402 



J. LESSEE shall be responsible for establishing at the PREMISES a reliable means of 403 

weather monitoring which shall be capable of receiving up-to-the-moment information 404 

pertaining to threatening weather conditions and related advisories. Such means of 405 

weather monitoring shall be in place at the PREMISES and activated during the course 406 

of any LESSEE related activities. 407 

K. LESSEE shall be responsible for pick up and removal of all mud and debris that may 408 

accumulate on the roadway adjacent to the PREMISES and cleaning of the PREMISES 409 

shall be to the satisfaction of the LESSOR. 410 

L. Total attendance at a special event or tournament shall not exceed 900 people within 411 

the boundaries shown on Attached map. Should LESSEE exceed said level of attendance, 412 

the LESSOR reserves the right to disallow entry of people into the boundaries shown on 413 

Attached map or the LESSOR may terminate the special event or tournament if deemed 414 

necessary. 415 

M. LESSEE shall be allowed to use propane and/or charcoal fuel fires contained in grills on 416 

gravel surfaces within distances no less than 20 feet away from any building structure 417 

indicated on attached map. 418 

N. LESSEE shall be obligated to provide the LESSOR a minimum of 60-days advanced notice 419 

when requesting permission to allow participant or spectator camping within the 420 

boundaries of the Expo Center. The LESSOR’S acknowledgement for allowing for 421 

individual or group camping on the Expo Center grounds shall be provided through 422 

written notification and shall contain requirements for payment of camping fees 423 

according to provision promulgated within Chapter 19 of the County General Code. 424 

Additionally, the placement of campers on the Expo Center premises shall be done at 425 

the LESSOR’S discretion. 426 

O. LESSEE shall be obligated to provide the LESSOR a minimum 30-days prior notice 427 

requesting permission to allow LESSEE’S staff or vendor personnel to remain overnight 428 

within the PREMISES. Contingent upon LESSOR’S granting permission, LESSEE shall 429 



abide by the following conditions regarding overnight stays: 430 

i. No more than three persons shall be stationed in the PREMISES and such persons 431 

shall be present for the sole purpose of providing security for equipment and 432 

other materials set up in preparation for an open tournament or special event. 433 

ii. Except in cases of emergency, said persons shall be prohibited from entering or 434 

leaving the PREMISES between the hours 11 p.m. and 5 a.m. the next morning. 435 

iii. During the aforementioned time period, such persons shall be restricted from 436 

traveling anywhere on the Expo grounds outside the PREMISES as indicated on 437 

attached map. 438 

iv. Outside fires of any type are prohibited. 439 

v. No more than two camping tents or a single camper unit shall be allowed to be 440 

located in the PREMISES in order to accommodate such persons. 441 

vi. A minimum of two weeks prior to the open tournament or special event, LESSEE 442 

shall provide the LESSOR a written summary containing the names and telephone 443 

numbers of the persons who will be staying on the PREMISES. In addition, LESSEE 444 

shall include with the summary a description of each person’s vehicle that will be 445 

remaining in the PREMISES overnight. Said description shall also include the 446 

license plate number for each of the vehicles. 447 

P. LESSEE shall appear upon request before the Parks & Recreation Committee during a 448 

monthly meeting and provide an annual report on recent activities and plans for future 449 

programming. 450 

Q. Damages to PREMISES 451 

i. In the event of partial or complete loss to PREMISES by fire, the elements, 452 

accident, or other occurrence, LESSOR shall have no obligation to compensate 453 

LESSEE for any loss incurred except that caused by LESSOR’S negligence. LESSEE 454 

shall, within 30 days of said loss, give notice to LESSOR of its intent to repair or 455 

rebuild, or of its intent to terminate this Agreement. In the event that LESSEE 456 



chooses to repair or rebuild, the term and provisions of this Agreement shall 457 

continue unabated, provided that repair or reconstruction substantially 458 

commences within 180 days of the date of loss. In the event that a loss or 459 

occurrence on the PREMISES, caused by an act of neglect on the part of LESSEE, 460 

produces a loss to any of LESSOR’S property lying adjacent to the PREMISES, 461 

LESSEE shall, at its expense, repair, replace, or rebuild or cause to be repaired, 462 

replaced or rebuilt, any such property damaged or lost to its previous condition 463 

as soon as reasonably possible, and to reimburse LESSOR’S, its agents, 464 

employees, other lessees, contractors and suppliers for any and all costs and 465 

expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, or loss of gross revenue, 466 

incurred as a result of such loss or damage. 467 

R. LESSOR reserves the right to further develop and/or improve the facilities within the 468 

PREMISES at LESSOR’S sole discretion, regardless of the desires or opinions of LESSEE 469 

subject to LESSEE’S right to Quiet Enjoyment of the PREMISES as provided for in Section 470 

P. herein. LESSOR further reserves the right to take any action it considers necessary to 471 

preserve the appropriate environment within the whole of the Sunnyview Exposition 472 

Center grounds in whatever manner it determines is of most benefit to Sunnyview 473 

Exposition Center operations. 474 

15. During the term of this agreement of the LESSEE agrees not to discriminate against any person, 475 

whether a recipient of services (actual or potential), an employee, a guest, or an applicant for 476 

employment on the basis of race, religion, sex, handicap, national origin, age, cultural differences, 477 

sexual preference or marital status. 478 

16. Duly authorized agents of LESSOR have the right to enter the PREMISES during any event to 479 

inspect, repair or maintain the building(s) and/or grounds. 480 

17. NAMING RIGHTS. 481 

A. In the event the LESSOR enters into a naming rights agreement for all or any part of the 482 

PREMISES, use of said name(s) shall replace all previous facility name references in all 483 



promotional and advertising materials used by LESSEE, and/or the LESSEE’S agents, 484 

vendors, or subcontractors, for the remainder of the Rental Agreement. LESSEE shall be 485 

obligated to complete change within 365 days of notification by LESSOR at LESSEE’S 486 

expense. 487 

B. Should LESSOR enter into a licensing agreement that provides for the exclusive sale of 488 

certain brands of concessions or beverage goods upon the PREMISES, LESSEE shall be 489 

bound by the terms of said licensing agreement provided LESSOR has presented LESSEE 490 

with written notification of the obligatory conditions of the licensing agreement. Sale of 491 

alternate brands of concessions or beverage goods by LESSEE shall be deemed in breach 492 

of contract. 493 

C. LESSOR’S Sponsors shall have access to the exposition building during all events for 494 

purposes of selling or displaying concessions or merchandise. Said merchandise shall be 495 

pre-approved via Sponsorship Agreement between Sponsor and LESSOR. 496 

D. LESSOR’S concessionaire Sponsor shall have access to an area sixteen feet square along 497 

the south east corner of the Center Hall for purposes of selling and or displaying pre-498 

approved merchandise, with the exception of events not open to the public and those 499 

events deemed Private on the official expo calendar. 500 

E. Said concessionaire Sponsor shall also have access to a twenty foot by forty-foot area 501 

located within the south west corner of parking lot #4 for selling and or displaying pre-502 

approved merchandise during events taking place within the Covered Arena. A mutually 503 

agreeable alternate area for the above sponsor activity must be presented in writing to 504 

LESSOR with signatures of Sponsor, LESSEE and LESSOR a minimum of two weeks prior 505 

to scheduled event. 506 

F. LESSOR’S Sponsor shall have the right to set up an area for selling and or displaying 507 

merchandise during events within the Sunnyview Exposition Center grounds that take 508 

place in other areas than those stated in Section 17 D and E. Said area shall be mutually 509 

agreed upon by Sponsor, LESSEE and LESSOR and submitted in writing to the LESSOR 510 



within two weeks prior to the scheduled event. 511 

18. LESSEE or event sponsor(s) advertising their event through the use of radio, television, placards or 512 

other advertising media shall identify this area as the Sunnyview Exposition Center, located on 513 

County Road Y, ½-mile east of the intersection of Highway 76 and County Road Y. 514 

19. The entire agreement of the parties is contained herein and this agreement supersedes any and 515 

all oral agreements and negotiations between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. 516 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly signed and executed this Rental Agreement this the    

day of       , 20  . 

LESSEE(S):      WINNEBAGO COUNTY (LESSOR): 

              
Name (print)      Jonathan Doemel   Date 
       Winnebago County Executive 
 
              
Signature    Date  Susan T. Ertmer    Date 
       Winnebago County Clerk 
 
REGISTERED AGENT: 
 
       
Name 
 
       
Address 
 
       
City/State/Zip 



EXHIBIT "A" 

Winnebago County Insurance Certificate Information 

The information on this document contains pertinent insurance certificate requirements applicable to the 

festivals, tournaments, and/or runs that take place on various Winnebago County Parks properties. Included in 

the information are specifics relating to the conditions and coverages each LESSEE/EVENT SPONSOR must 

address within their certificate. It is recommended that LESSEES/EVENT SPONSORS submit a copy of this 

document to his/her insurance agent and make them aware that the narrative on the completed certificate 

must be precise. 

A minimum of thirty (30) days prior to holding the event or participating in the event, the LESSEE/EVENT 

SPONSOR, at its own expense, shall furnish Winnebago County with a Certificate of Insurance indicating proof of 

the following insurance from companies licensed in the State: 

1. Workers Compensation - statutory - in compliance with the Compensation Law of the State.  Include a 

Federal Longshoremen and Harbor Workers Endorsement, if applicable. 

2. General Liability Insurance with a minimum combined single limit of liability per occurrence for bodily 

injury and property damage of $1,000,000 or $2,000,000 if explosion, underground and/or collapse 

involved.  This insurance shall include on the Certificate of Insurance the following coverages: 

a. Premises - Operations 

b. Products and Completed 

Operations   

c. Broad Form Property Damage 

d. Broad Form Blanket Contractual 

e. Personal Injury   

f. Professional Liability 

g. Liquor Liability (if alcohol on 

Premises) 

3. The certificate shall list the Certificate Holder and Address as follows:  Winnebago County, Attn: 

Purchasing Manager, P.O. Box 2808, Oshkosh, WI 54903-2808. 

4. Regarding the "Description of Operations", LESSEE/EVENT SPONSOR is to include a description of the 

program as well as its location (address) and all applicable dates (i.e. set-up, event date(s) and clean-up). 

5. Such insurance shall include under the General Liability and Automobile Liability Policies, the recognition 

of Winnebago County, its employees, elected officials, representatives, and members of its boards 

and/or commissions as "Additional Named Insureds". 

6. Such insurance shall include a thirty (30) day notice prior to cancellation or material policy change, 

which notice shall be given to the Winnebago County, Attn: Insurance Administrator, 112 Otter Avenue, 

Oshkosh, WI 54901.  All such notices will name the LESSEE/EVENT SPONSOR and identify the event as 

well as the date(s). 

Send the complete insurance certificate to Justin DeJager at jdejager@co.winnebago.wi.us or mail it to the 

Winnebago County Parks Department at 625 E. County Road Y, Suite 500, Oshkosh, WI 54901. Contact the Parks 

Department at (920)232-1964 with any questions. 

Contracts with Winnebago County cannot be approved without a valid insurance certificate. 

 



EXHIBIT "B" 

RECYCLING REQUIREMENTS 

Wisconsin State Statue Chapter 287: Solid Waste Reduction, Recovery and Recycling, commonly known 

as Recycling Law, outlines the requirements for recycling for the state of Wisconsin. As a renter of the 

Winnebago County Park Facilities, you are required to follow this statue, particularly the sections 

outlined here: 

According to ch. 287.05(5), "the implementation of solid waste reduction, reuse, recycling, composting 

and resource recovery systems and operations requires the involvement and cooperation of all persons 

and entities comprising this state's society, including individuals, state and local governments, schools, 

private organizations and businesses." 

According to ch. 287.07(3), "Beginning on January 1, 1995, no person may dispose of in a solid waste 

disposal facility… any of the following: (paraphrased for space and clarity) aluminum containers, 

corrugated paper, glass containers, magazines, newspaper, office paper, plastic containers (#1 & #2), 

and steel containers." 

In short, renters of Winnebago County Park Facilities must separate for recycling those items listed 

above and deliver these items to the Winnebago County Recycling Facility. If the renter contracts out its 

recycling and trash hauling, it must specify the use of the Winnebago County Landfill and Recycling 

Facilities. 

If you have any questions regarding the Recycling Law, please contact the Winnebago County Recycling 

Manager at (920)232-1800. 



EXHIBIT "C" 
SUNNYVIEW EXPOSITION CENTER POLICY STATEMENT 

1. Waste Hauling 
A. Sunnyview Expo Center contracts to supply animal refuse removal services for animal 

refuse along with scheduled waste removal for other garbage on the grounds. Recycling 
containers are available for LESSEE'S use. All garbage shall be disposed of at the 
Winnebago County Solid Waste Facility unless LESSOR approves alternate methods. All 
recyclable materials shall be disposed of at the Winnebago County Recycling Facility. 

B. LESSEE is responsible for making sure that all animal waste is disposed of in the manure 
pit or manure holding area(s) and that regular garbage is disposed of in the dumpster 
provided for this purpose. 

C. LESSEE is responsible for separation of recyclable materials using the marked containers 
for aluminum cans, plastic bottles, and cardboard boxes. 

D. The Parks Department shall bill the LESSEE for the correct amount of waste hauling fees 
after the event has taken place, all waste has been disposed of, and waste hauling bills 
have been received and reviewed by the Parks Department office. 

2. Camping Fees 
A. Camping areas shall be rented on a per area basis. There is a designated fee for each 

camping area. Said camping area shall appear along with the listed charge on individual 
contracts. The camping area listed on the contract shall be the only area LESSEE shall be 
allowed to use for camping during the event. If weather or turf conditions prohibit use 
of contracted area, an available area of similar size shall be provided by LESSOR at no 
additional charge.  

B. There is no fee per camper.   
C. Camping areas must be reserved at time of initial reservation along with other facilities. 

3. Dump Station Usage 
A. Dump station is for use by on-site campers only. 
B. Dump station rules are posted at the site and must be followed. 

4. Parking 
A. All parking areas and grassy areas on the PREMISES (other than those leased for 

camping by an event) are considered shared use areas.  
B. LESSEES who wish to charge for parking are responsible for signage, designating parking 

fees, barricades and/or barrier tape to designate said areas, and collection of fees. 
These areas must be manned at all times the event is in progress and fees are being 
collected. Patrons parking for other events shall not be charged to park if all other 
parking areas are full. 

C. Parking outside of designated parking areas or in posted 'no parking' areas, is prohibited 
and will result in a citation by City of Oshkosh Police. At Winnebago County Parks 
Department discretion, certain grassy, parking, or camping areas may be designated as 
temporarily or permanently off limits. Such restrictions shall be clearly marked and the 
City of Oshkosh Police will issue violators a citation. 

5. Multi-day Contract Preeminence 
A. Multi-day events take precedence over single day events when negotiating all contracts. 

6. Deposits 
A. Reservation and Supplemental Deposits are required as per the following: 

I. Reservation Deposit. LESSEE shall pay a reservation deposit of approximately 
25% of total fee due to secure performance by LESSEE of all of the terms and 
conditions of this Rental Agreement. The deposit shall be paid by LESSEE to the 



LESSOR upon reservation of the facility. The reservation deposit payment is non-
refundable and shall be deducted from the total fee due.  

II. Supplemental Deposit. LESSEE shall pay a supplemental deposit of 
approximately 25% of the total fee due, approximately three (3) months prior to 
first event set up day. The supplemental deposit is non-refundable and shall be 
deducted from the total fee due.  

III. Balance Due. LESSEE shall pay the remaining balance due to LESSOR before the 
close of business 4:30 p.m. CST/CDT on or before the first event set up day. If 
the remaining balance due LESSOR is not received from LESSEE by the due date 
and time, keys for the opening of reserved buildings shall not be checked out to 
LESSEE and use of the PREMISES shall be denied.  

IV. First Right of Refusal. LESSEE shall reserve the first right of reservation for the 
same calendar dates in the years following the end of the Rental Agreement 
term. Once a Rental Agreement term has expired and LESSEE has not begun 
another Rental Agreement, if LESSOR receives a request for the same calendar 
dates LESSEE has previously held under a Rental Agreement, LESSOR shall 
contact LESSEE via email informing LESSEE of said request. LESSEE shall have 10 
days from transmittal of said notification to reply to LESSOR in writing of 
LESSEE’S intentions for the future dates in question. 

7. Insurance for Private Party Events 
A. LESSEE’S holding private parties may be eligible to purchase a Winnebago County 

Insurance Rider. Only those events that are not open to the public may be eligible for 
this benefit. Payment for said rider is required a minimum of 30 days before the event. 
All other LESSEE’S are required to have a liability policy as per contract. 

8. Non-Profit Group Discounts 
A. There are no discounts given to non-profit groups renting the facilities with the 

exception of Winnebago County 4H, Winnebago County Fair Association, and 
Winnebago Farm Bureau.  

B. The Winnebago County Fair Association will be charged as per their contract with 
Winnebago County. 

C. The Winnebago County 4H will be charged the discounted fees outlined in the 
Winnebago County 4H policy. 

D. The Winnebago Farm Bureau discount will apply only to the Food Court building. 
9. Winnebago County Department Usage 

A. Winnebago County Departments and other municipalities may reserve the facilities at 
no charge depending on availability. All such reservations are subject to a minimum 30-
day cancellation notice if a paying client rents the facilities for a reserved date. 

10. Event Curfew 
A. All events involving admission of the public to the facilities and/or grounds shall have a 

curfew of 2:30 a.m. to 5:30 a.m. daily. Consequently, admission to the grounds by the 
general public for means of attending the event is forbidden during the curfew hours. 
LESSEE shall not collect admission during the curfew hours, nor allow the general public 
free entrance to the event during the curfew hours. 

B. All music, engines, outdoor activities etc. will cease prior to the 2:30 a.m. curfew and 
shall not resume until after the 5:30 a.m. curfew termination. 

C. Exceptions for the 2:30 a.m. curfew are overnight campers who may remain on the 
grounds overnight, event security, clean up and preparation activities done by the 
LESSEE or those employed by the LESSEE. 



D. LESSEES who violate the curfew policy will be considered in breach of contract and shall 
not be allowed future rental of the facilities. Violators are also subject to any and all City 
of Oshkosh ordinance violation citations applicable and may be cited by the City of 
Oshkosh Police Department. LESSOR retains the right to close down events that violate 
the 2:30 a.m. to 5:30 a.m. curfew. 

11. Security System - Responsibility of Client 
A. It is the responsibility of all Expo LESSEES to contact Expo Management before their 

event to discuss the Expo Center Security System. During this discussion the monitoring 
time for the alarm systems will be defined for the event and these times shall be 
adhered to by each LESSEE. 

B. In the event that an alarm is activated through negligence of the LESSEE or attendees of 
the LESSEE’S event (not an actual emergency) a fine will be assessed to the LESSEE for 
the cost of police and fire department responses, as invoiced to the Parks Department, 
and any additional labor costs associated with the negligent activation of the Expo 
security system. Frequent false alarms by the same LESSEE may result in cancellation of 
future reservations. 

C. The Expo Center Security System is not designed for use by the client for security for 
their event. The system is in place to protect the Expo property only. In the event that 
an incident has taken place during an event that the police department wishes to 
investigate, it is necessary for the investigating officers to officially request copies of any 
pertinent surveillance recordings from the Expo Management.  

D. Intentional damage or destruction of any of the security system components 
determined to have taken place during an event shall be the responsibility of the 
LESSEE. The LESSEE shall be billed for repair or replacement costs of all equipment 
intentionally damaged during their event. 

12. Horse Show Events 
A. A dump station key will be made available for events renting camping areas. The dump 

station key must be checked out when the balance is paid for contracts and all other 
keys are picked up. All stipulations regarding cleanliness referenced in contracts will 
apply to the dump station. LESSEE is responsible for security of the dump station area at 
all times. No campers other than those camping on the PREMISES are allowed to use the 
dump station. LESSOR may use documentation via security camera to augment security 
of the area. 

B. LESSEE shall be responsible for emptying all garbage cans throughout the PREMISES, 
inserting new bags into empty cans and depositing the full bags into a Dumpster. 
LESSOR shall supply extra garbage bags for this purpose. LESSEE shall continue to 
monitor garbage cans throughout the leased PREMISES and empty those cans that are 
full into a Dumpster while replacing the bag within each can with bags provided by 
LESSOR. Any garbage that accumulates outside of full garbage cans shall be collected 
and deposited into a Dumpster as part of LESSEE’S garbage monitoring activities. Any 
garbage cans not emptied which must be emptied by County staff post-event will be 
billed to the LESSEE at Set up/Clean up Charges from official Sunnyview Exposition 
Center Rental Fees Schedule with a three-hour minimum.  

C. After events, stalls shall be cleaned by LESSEE to the cement or gravel floor and raked to 
the aisles. Stall doors shall be closed after all stalls are cleaned and raked. LESSOR shall 
then remove animal refuse from aisles to manure holding areas where contracted pick 
up will occur for which LESSEE shall be post billed accordingly. 

D. LESSOR shall make available electronic copies of outlet locations and amperage for 
LESSEE’S use in setting up of camping locations. LESSOR reserves the right to limit access 



to any electrical equipment as deemed necessary by the County Electrician for safety of 
the facility and event attendees.  

E. With the exception of normal wear and tear, only egregious damage to LESSOR’S stalls 
will be charged out to LESSEE for damage to stall fabric, frames or hardware. Such 
damage shall be determined per LESSOR’S discretion.  

F. All dogs must be leashed when present on the PREMISES. Owners must clean up after 
their dogs and deposit refuse accordingly. Oshkosh Police Department intervention may 
be required if dogs running at large become a problem for other patrons of the 
PREMISES. LESSOR reserves the right to limit or ban dogs from the PREMISES unless 
properly leashed.  

G. LESSEE must notify LESSOR prior to picking up keys for the event the event’s 
programming needs for timing of the outdoor arena lights and lot lights to 
accommodate LESSEE’S event. LESSOR reserves the right to limit excessive use of lot and 
covered arena lights overnight. 

H. All signed parking restrictions, including fire lanes, shall be strictly enforced and may 
cause violators to be subject to citation by City of Oshkosh Police. 

I. The outdoor arena shall be groomed to a standard approved by LESSOR for use as a 
warm up and practice arena to a three-inch depth. Activities not allowed within the 
outdoor arena, include but are not limited to, tent staking, stage erection, motorized 
vehicle activities, mechanized carnival rides, and other activities deemed by LESSOR to 
be of potential risk of damage to the base material. Said damage potential shall be at 
LESSOR’S sole discretion.    

J. The sound systems for the arenas which fed the barns shall be set up and checked 
during the pre-event walk through. Once set LESSEE shall have no access to said sound 
system for the remainder of the event.  

K. Arenas shall be groomed to LESSOR’S set standard of three inches in depth prior to 
events. LESSEE shall accept arenas as groomed for the duration of the event. Any 
grooming by LESSEE over and above that done by LESSOR shall be at LESSEE’S risk and 
expense. Any damages to arena and/or arena base determined to be caused by LESSEE’S 
said grooming shall be repaired at LESSEE’S expense. 

L. No persons connected to any event or any equipment, materials, trailers, campers etc. 
are allowed on the grounds prior to the official set up time and date noted in the 
LESSEE’S contract. This includes those who are officially managing the event as well as 
those taking part in set up for the event. Set up day is defined as the day that all 
persons, equipment, materials, trailers, campers etc. shall be allowed on the grounds. 
Set up day begins at the time on the date indicated on the contract (usually 7:00 a.m. 
unless otherwise approved) and take down day ends at the time on the date indicated 
on the contract (usually 11:00 p.m. unless otherwise approved). Take down day is 
defined as the day that all equipment, materials, trailers, campers, etc. is to be removed 
from the grounds by the LESSEE. Set up, take down, and event days are listed in the 
‘Term’ section of each contract. Before signing the contract and returning it make sure 
the days listed are correct. Shows are allowed two set up days before an event and one 
take down day after an event. The expo staff requires a minimum of two full days (not 
including set up and take down days) to remove used bedding, inspect for damages, 
mow, work up the arenas, drag the gravel areas and etc. between events. Pre-event 
walk throughs will only be done on LESSEE’S official set up days, not before. This will 
keep the incoming LESSEE from inheriting the previous LESSEE’S damages. When horse 
shows are ‘laying over’ between shows, which requires permission from expo 
management, the time needed for clean up by expo staff is less due to the fact that 



barns do not need to have all bedding removed. Post event walk throughs must be done 
after all persons, materials, trailers, campers etc. are removed from the grounds (those 
not laying over) and prior to the time indicated on the incoming contract as the LESSEE’S 
first set up day regardless of any lay over. Again, this is done to allow for damages to be 
assessed to the correct LESSEE.  

M. Use of Barn E for housing of any animal except domesticated dogs, cats and service 
animals shall be prohibited. LESSEE shall make use of Barn A overhang and western 
overhangs on Barns A through D for horse shows to accommodate additional stall 
needs. 

 
13. Other Expo Policy Statements 

A. Future reservations may be banned or terminated for non-payment of overdue bills, 
material breach of contract, or more than two cancellations by the LESSEE in one 
calendar year. A Material Breach of Contract is constituted as non-compliance with any 
and all state and federal laws, rules and regulations, all applicable municipal ordinances 
and all policies depicted in this document. Reservations may be reinstated after 
payment in full of all overdue bills along with all penalties and/or fines for such as 
instituted by the Winnebago County Finance Department. State, Federal or Municipal 
law or ordinance violations resulting in citations by law enforcement constitute the 
forfeiture of all current and future reservations as well as violations of the policies 
stated in this document. 

B. Tables, chairs, and inside stage units shall not to be used outside any building unless 
permission is granted by Expo Management. Any damage to tables, chairs, or stage units 
related to weather shall be billed for full replacement costs to the LESSEE. 

C. Tables, chairs, stage units, picnic tables, benches, or any other Expo Center property 
shall not be removed for use off the PREMISES. Any property found to be missing after 
an event will be billed for full replacement costs to the LESSEE. 

D. A Security Deposit may be required as per the Winnebago County Parks Department 
discretion, and shall be identified in individual contracts. A Security Deposit of $2,000.00 
in the form of a cashier’s check or cash, shall be required for all circus events and retail 
or outlet sales events. All damages found post event shall be deducted from said 
Security Deposit. All damages found post event for contracts without a required Security 
Deposit shall be billed at $49.00 per hour for labor plus any materials needed to repair 
the property to its pre-event status with a three-hour minimum.  

E. LESSEES shall take part in a pre and/or post event walk through with staff and shall fill 
out the Request for Pre/Post Event Walk Through supplied with the event contract and 
return it with the signed contract. The person signing the contract must be the person 
doing the walk through with staff. If an appointment is made for a pre or post event 
walk through and the LESSEE does not attend as scheduled all claims of damage shall be 
determined to be the responsibility of the LESSEE. All first time LESSEES and out of state 
LESSEES and their Registered Agent, must do a pre and post event walk through. Those 
returning LESSEES who wish to decline a pre or post event walk through shall mark the 
decline box on their form and shall accept all damage noted by staff as their 
responsibility. LESSEES will be billed accordingly for damages. Unpaid damages shall 
result in no future reservations until such damages are paid.  

F. Out of state LESSEES are subject to special circumstances which are identified in the 
Sunnyview Exposition Center Rental Fees Schedule.  



G. At Winnebago County Parks Department discretion, extra security, special permits, 
and/or other additional measures may be required for certain events. These measures 
will be addressed in individual contracts. 

H. In the event of an emergency situation declared by the Winnebago County Executive 
within Winnebago County, the Sunnyview Exposition Center may be required for use as 
an emergency shelter. In this situation, all events taking place on the grounds are 
subject to reconfiguration of facility use as the emergency situation demands. Such 
matters will require reimbursement of rental fees only for individual facility use 
requiring event cancellation. Winnebago County will not reimburse lost potential 
revenues, lost expenditures or lost unrecognized expenditures other than rental fees. 

I. Prior to LESSEE occupying the PREMISES on the first official set up day for the event, if 
damage to a portion or all of the PREMISES has occurred via an ‘Act of God’ or man-
made disaster which results in a declaration of uninhabitability of said portion or all of 
the PREMISES by the City of Oshkosh building inspector or Winnebago County’s insurer, 
all events taking place on the grounds are subject to reconfiguration of facility use as the 
situation demands. Such situations may be eligible for reimbursement of rental fees 
only for individual facility use requiring event cancellation. Lost potential revenues, 
expenditures or unrecognized expenditures other than rental fees shall not be 
reimbursed.  

J. In the event that any Exposition Center keys are lost or stolen when in the possession of 
the LESSEE, LESSEE shall be responsible for the cost to replace any locking mechanisms 
on doors or padlocks and/or re-keying of said locks that have been compromised by said 
lost keys. 

K. Clients wishing to reserve a date that has already been reserved by another client with a 
paid reservation deposit may enter their name and event on a waiting list. If the 
currently scheduled event cancels the reservation, the first name on the waiting list will 
be contacted to reserve the now open date. If the first client name on the list does not 
wish to reserve the facility the second name will be contacted and so on until a 
reservation is confirmed and a reservation deposit has been received at the Parks 
Department. 

L. If a LESSEE wishes to cancel use of an individual contracted facility, for example, a 
LESSEE has a contract for the covered arena and barns A, A+, B, C and D, and the LESSEE 
wishes to cancel the use of one barn for the event, the cancellation of the individual 
facility must be made at least two weeks before the event takes place, in order to 
facilitate a contract amendment. Cancellations of individual contracted facilities 
requested less than two weeks before the event date are not allowed, and a refund will 
not be issued. 

M. At LESSOR’S discretion to provide security for the grounds all LESSEES may be issued a 
gate key for the front entrance gates along with any other keys necessary for the leased 
facilities. All gates must then be closed and locked whenever the LESSEE or LESSEE'S 
employees or volunteers, are not present on the grounds. 

N. The policy for directly connecting vendors and other electrical hook ups to the 
Sunnyview Exposition Center electrical system, requiring anything other than an 
extension cord, is stated in a separate policy. LESSEES must be familiar with NFPA 70 Arc 
Flash requirements. The Electrical and Water Hook Up Policy states the requirements 
for electrical and water hook ups at the Sunnyview Exposition Center. 

O. When a LESSEE is required to contract with an outside security agency or the Oshkosh 
Police Department or Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department as a contingency for 
facility rental, documentation of said security contract must be shown for keys to be 



issued to the LESSEE. The Oshkosh Police Department must approve all security plans 
that are required by contract and their recommendations followed unless the Parks 
Director or Program Manager waives such recommendations in writing. All events that 
serve alcohol shall be required to provide a security plan. At the County’s discretion, a 
security or emergency plan may be required for specified events due to the number of 
expected attendees, or past citations from an authorized police, fire or sheriff’s 
department. Said plan shall be submitted to and approved by the Parks Director or 
Program Manager at least 30 days prior to event date. If Emergency Medical Services 
are required for an event an emergency plan must be provided along with the security 
plan. The emergency plan must be approved by the Oshkosh Fire Department and their 
recommendations followed unless waived in writing by the Parks Director or Program 
Manager. 

P. Improvements to Parks Department grounds and/or facilities involving construction of 
new buildings, additions to existing buildings, and reconfiguration of parking and grassy 
areas, may take place from time to time. LESSEE shall not be subject to a reduction of 
rental fees or reimbursement of rental fees by the LESSOR to the LESSEE for areas 
unavailable for use due to ongoing construction, reconfiguration of grounds or building 
usage during current and future lease terms. Reconfiguration of grounds and building 
usage in affected areas shall be at the discretion of the Winnebago County Parks 
Department and shall have no effect on individual leases. 

Q. Any item(s), including but not limited to, sand, gravel, top soil, fencing, etc., left on the 
PREMISES by the LESSEE shall, at LESSOR’S discretion and through LESSOR’S resources, 
be moved to an appropriate location to eliminate the potential for the item(s) to 
become a hazard or impediment to Expo operations. At the conclusion of LESSEE’S 
event a 30-day period shall commence in which LESSEE must remove such item(s) from 
LESSOR’S property unless, prior to said event, LESSEE has obtained LESSOR’S written 
endorsement of a documented request detailing storage arrangements to be applied 
during and, if necessary, following the aforementioned 30-day period. In all cases, 
including those with documented recognition of storage arrangements, the LESSEE shall 
be responsible for payment of all expenses sustained as a result of the movement, 
storage, maintenance, and/or disposal of the item(s) following the conclusion of 
LESSEE’S event. Additionally, LESSEE shall be liable for any damages or injuries that 
occur in association with a failure to remove LESSEE’S item(s) from the PREMISES at the 
conclusion of LESSEE’S event. Following the aforementioned 30-day period, LESSEE 
waives all rights to reclaim said item(s) barring LESSOR’S written endorsement of prior 
storage arrangements, as stated above.  

R. Occupancy policy for use of covered arena is noted above.  
S. Use of any food service facility is prohibited on set up and take down days for 

concession sales to event participants, volunteers, event workers, or the general public 
without payment for use of the food service facility via the Rental Agreement.  

T. If Parks/Expo or County Facilities Dept. staff must be called in to a non-emergent 
situation, a charge of $49.00/hr. will be incurred by LESSEE payable upon receipt of 
invoice from LESSOR.  

U. Use of Barn E for housing of any animal except domesticated dogs, cats and service 
animals shall be prohibited. 

V. Sale of alcoholic beverages shall be limited to those items permitted for a Class B 
beverage license as issued by the City of Oshkosh. 



FIRE EVACUATION PLAN 
 

1. Emergency escape routes will be displayed at all main entrances to the Sunnyview Expo Center. 
 

2. It will not be necessary for any employees to remain in place to operate critical equipment prior 
to evacuation. 

 
3. Employees will be gathered in Parking Lot #1 for a head count. Occupants will be instructed to 

gather in Parking Lot #1 as well. However, a variety of events are held at the Sunnyview Expo 
Center and an actual head count may not be possible. All employees are to use their best effort 
to assure all individuals are out of the building safely. 

 
4. Park's employees are not responsible for rescue or first aid. This will strictly be administered on 

a volunteer basis. However, 911 will dispatch emergency services and they will rescue and 
administer first aid. 

 
5. The public address system will be used to notify occupants of any emergency. If this system is 

not available for some reason, notification will have to be verbal. 
 

6. In the event of an emergency a public phone is available in the Sunnyview Expo Center for use 
to contact 911. If Park's employees are on the scene they will contact 911 via cell phone. If this is 
not possible they will radio into base and the base will contact 911. 

 
7. The Expo Manager will be in charge of implementing this plan. In the absence the Expo Manager 

at the time of an emergency the responsibility will follow the normal chain of command present 
at the Parks Department. 

 
8. The Expo Manager will be contacted by the 911 communication center and will be available to 

access the building. However, if the emergency warrants immediate entry a master key is 
located on the Sunnyview Expo Center grounds for access and the location has been provided to 
the necessary emergency responders. 

 
9. The emergency alert system consists of a public address system located just inside the main 

doors in the ticket box office. 
 

10. Maximum occupancy for the Sunnyview Expo Center is 4800 persons. 
 

11. Due to the variety of events there is no detailed seating plan available for the Sunnyview Expo 
Center. 

 
12. Due to the variety of events there is no special event occupancy load information available. This 

depends on the event and the flow of occupants during an event. 
 

13. These plans will be reviewed annually by the Expo Manager, Parks Director, and Safety 
Coordinator. 

 
14. These plans will be maintained on site and available for review by all employees. A copy will be 

sent to: Fire Prevention Bureau, 101 Court St., Oshkosh, WI 54901. 



 
 
 
 

PROPER DISPOSAL OF ASHES 
(FIREPLACES, PELLET STOVES, WOODBURNERS, ETC.) 

 
With the increased use of outdoor fireplaces and alternative heating methods 
(pellet stoves, corn burners, etc.) the City of Oshkosh has had an increase in 
fires due to careless/improper disposal of the leftover ashes.  Even after several 
days piles of ashes can hold enough heat to reignite and start a fire.  Therefore, 
extra care should be used in the storage and final disposal of them. 
 

► First of all, make sure there are no hot spots left in the ashes.  This is 
done either by soaking them in water or leaving them sit for a few days if 
practical (and then double checking them for hot spots).  Besides doing 
this for the above-mentioned appliances this also holds true for cigarette 
and charcoal grill ashes. 

 
► Secondly, all ashes should be stored in a fire-resistant (metal) container 

with a tight fitting cover (buckets made especially for storage of ashes are 
available at many area retailers).  They should NEVER be disposed of in a 
plastic garbage bag or can, a cardboard box, or paper grocery bag.  While 
this sounds obvious, it happens way too often. 

 
► This metal container should then be placed away from anything that can 

burn.  It should NOT be placed next to the firewood pile, up against the 
garage, on or under a wooden deck, or under a porch—all of these have 
started fires in the City of Oshkosh. 

 
► After sitting in this metal container for a week the ashes are then safe to 

dispose of in your trash. 
 
 
 
 
 



Fire/Admnn/Fire Prevention/SpecialEventsVendorRequirements 

 
CITY OF OSHKOSH FIRE DEPARTMENT 

FOOD VENDOR REQUIREMNETS 

 

ALL REQUIREMENTS ARE PER 

THE 2009 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 

 
 

 

ALL Tents Must:  

 1)  Be certified FLAME RESISTANT—with NFPA 701 Label 

 2)  Have a “NO SMOKING” sign posted. 

      3)  Be placed 20 FEET from any cooking area/device. 

 

 

NO EATING IS ALLOWED IN ANY TENT IN WHICH COOKING TAKES PLACE UNLESS 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY THE FIRE DEPARTMENT. 

 

 

Fire Extinguisher(s) Required: 

1) A minimum of one 5 lb, ABC, dry chemical (2A:20B:C) fire extinguisher is required for all tents. 

2) If deep frying or cooking with oil, a minimum of a 10 lb, ABC (4A:40B:C) extinguisher or 1 Class K 

extinguisher and  one 5 lb, ABC, dry chemical (2A:20B:C) extinguisher is required. 

 

 

Allowable Distances of Other Cooking Areas From Any Structures (Including Tents): 
 1) Charcoal cooking – 20 FEET. 

 2) LP gas (NOT cooking with oil/grease) 

     -LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 500 GALLON container of LP—10 FEET 

     -GREATER THAN 500 GALLON container of LP—25 FEET 

 3) Electric (cooking with oil/grease) – 20 FEET. 

      -Unit must be: Electric, Commercially Manufactured, & UL Listed 

 4) Electric cooking (NOT cooking with oil/grease) – 10 FEET. 

 5) NO OPEN FLAMES ALLOWED 

 

 

ALL VIOLATIONS MUST BE CORRECTED IMMEDIATELY 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  

This is not a complete listing of the fire regulations, only an example of commonly violated regulations. The 

Fire Chief may modify the above regulations. The Fire Chief has the ultimate authority of regulations by Local 

& State Law. 

 
Fire Prevention Bureau, City of Oshkosh Fire Department 

(920) 236-5241 

fireprevention@ci.oshkosh.wi.us  



Fire/Admnn/Fire Prevention/SpecialEventsVendorRequirements 

 

CITY OF OSHKOSH FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 INDOOR VENDOR REQUIREMENTS 

 
ALL REQUIREMENTS ARE PER 

THE 2009 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 
 

Booths, Table Curtains/Drapes/Decorations Must Be Fire Retardant. 

 1)  Plastic table drapes are NOT ALLOWED 

 2)  Table draping must be treated by the manufacturer or exhibitor.  Fire protection certificate must be 

submitted or available for proof of fire resistive treatment.  

 3)  Natural vegetation is only allowed as decorations IF treated with fire retardant. 

 

A minimum of one 5lb dry chemical (2A:10B:C) fire extinguisher is required (within 75 feet). 

 

DO NOT Block Fire Extinguishers, Exit Ways/Doors, Do Not Cover Exit Signs. 

 

Spark Producing Devices Are Allowed ONLY WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE FIRE CHIEF. 
 1)  No open flame devices are allowed. 

 2)  No welding, soldering or brazing is allowed. 

 

Vehicles or Trailers on Display: 

 1)  Vehicles must contain less than 5 GALLONS of fuel. 

 2)  The fuel fill cap must be taped over. 

 3)  The battery must be disconnected. 

 

Fueled Accessories (Generators, Blowers, Chain Saws, etc.): 
 1)  Must not be running or operable 

 2)  Batteries disconnected if applicable 

 3)  Little or no fuel in the fuel tank 

 4)  The fuel tank must be taped over 

 

THE FIRE CHIEF MUST APPROVE THE DISPLAY OR USE OF FLAMMABLE AND/OR 

COMBUSTIBLE LIQUIDS 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  

This is not a complete listing of the fire regulations, only an example of commonly violated regulations. The 

Fire Chief may modify the above regulations. The fire Chief has the ultimate authority of regulations by Local 

& State Law. 

 

 

Fire Prevention Bureau, City of Oshkosh Fire Department 

(920) 236-5241 

fireprevention@ci.oshkosh.wi.us 

 



SUNNYVIEW EXPO CENTER 
PROCEDURES FOR ELECTRICAL AND WATER HOOK-UPS 

 
The following procedures are put in place as per Administrative Directive by the Winnebago 
County Parks Committee, to comply with City of Oshkosh and State of Wisconsin electric and 
water utility municipal codes. Lessee’s with questions concerning these procedures may contact 
the Winnebago County Parks Department. Please call (920) 232-1960. 
  
Procedures for Electrical Hook-ups  
In compliance with regulations stated in the National Electric Code – Article #525.13, and permit 
requirements for the City of Oshkosh, Expo Center management will not take an active role in 
administering the direct hook-up of portable wiring systems into the Expo Center’s electrical 
services. Portable wiring systems requiring direct wiring into the Expo Center’s electrical service 
for each device or each vendor must be checked by an independent electrician, contracted by 
the Lessee, and licensed for the City of Oshkosh, prior to being directly hooked-up. The 
contracted electrician will inspect the integrity of each of the vendor’s external wiring systems 
and, given his discretion, proceed to hook the portable wiring system into the Expo Center’s 
electrical services using a specified connector. In addition, vendors are required to have said 
electrician present to administer the disconnection of said portable wiring systems from the 
Expo Center’s electrical services.  
 
In situations where standard plug-ins are used to draw electricity, be aware that the Winnebago 
County Electrician will have final say in determining how to resolve situations where vendors 
have exceeded the amperage load capacity of the electrical service they are plugged into. 
Furthermore, all portable wiring systems are required to be of materials consistent with an extra 
hard usage cord (Black SO).  
 
Finally, vendors not in compliance with Article #525.13 will be required to make the appropriate 
adjustments at their own costs, before being permitted access to a power source. Also, vendors 
who attempt to circumvent these procedures will have their power turned-off and may be 
denied future hook-up(s). 
 
HVAC equipment is also under the jurisdiction of the County Facilities Department. 
       
Procedures for Water Hook-ups 
The City of Oshkosh supplies the Expo Center with a safe water source. In return, the Parks 
Department is required by state and local ordinances and codes to continue to insure the safety 
of the water as it is distributed throughout the Expo Center grounds. 
          
In order to be in compliance with these state and local mandates, the Expo Center management 
requires all vendors to follow regulations detailed in the Department of Commerce 
Administrative Code - Article 82.41 regarding cross connection control (see attachment).   
 
As a means to assure enforcement of Article 82.41, all vendors hooking up to an Expo Center 
water source will be required to have their hook-up system(s) checked by the Winnebago 
County Plumber, prior to being connected. This individual will inspect the integrity of the 
vendor’s water hook-up system(s) and, given his discretion, proceed to hook the system(s) into 
an Expo Center water outlet using an appropriate hose connection vacuum breaker(s) supplied 



by the vendor (see attachment). Vendors may disconnect their own systems at the conclusion of 
an event.  
 
In addition, all vendors serving carbonated drinks will be required to have in use, an appropriate 
backflow preventer for carbonated beverage machines (see attachment).  Prior to hook-up, the 
Winnebago County Plumber will examine such fixtures to determine compliance with Article 
82.41. Vendors found to have an unacceptable backflow preventer(s) will be required to replace 
said fixture(s) at their cost, before being hooked-up. 
 
Finally, by order of the City of Oshkosh Superintendent of Water Utilities, “No unauthorized 
person shall open any fire hydrants, nor shall any person obstruct or interfere with the use of 
any fire hydrant. Authorized personnel would be: Fire Department and Water Utility personnel.” 
 
Vendors who attempt to circumvent any of the aforementioned procedures, may be denied 
access to a water source for the duration of the event. 
 
Electrical and Plumbing Emergency Procedures 
Due to the transfer of the Parks Department Electrician and Parks Department Plumber to the 
Facilities and Property Management Department, beginning in 2009 the procedure for emergent 
situations will be thus. As before, in the event of an emergency of an electrical or plumbing 
nature the Lessee is to contact the Expo Staff on site. If no Expo Staff is on site a call is to be 
placed to the Assistant Expo Manager’s or the Expo Operations Supervisor’s County cell phone. 
In turn the Assistant Expo Manager or Expo Operations Supervisor will begin a process whereby 
the resources of the County’s Facilities and Property Management Department will begin to be 
employed in order to address the emergency. Once a description of the situation has been 
passed on to the Facilities and Property Staff the department supervisor will issue a response 
that Expo Staff will summarily convey to the Lessee. This dialogue will give the status of the 
Facilities and Property Management Department’s position as it relates to how and when the 
problem will be addressed.   



Consider time of day when safety planning.

●  Peak tornado occurrence is 4-9 pm

●  Peak high wind occurrence is 4-9 pm

Awareness training—Conduct meetings to make sure everyone knows the plan.

Practice the plan—conduct awareness briefings/drills:

●  Evaluate time needed to shelter

●  Evaluate suitability of shelters

Other ways to prepare:

●  Severe Weather Awareness Week–participate in tornado drill day

●  Attend storm spotter training

Have a designated Weather Watcher to monitor the sky and NWS “watches” and “warnings.”

Available information, before, during, after a storm:

●  Outlook: what to expect that day

●  Watch: within a few hours

●  Warning: severe thunderstorm, tornado within an hour (or minutes!)

●  Have a NOAA Weather Radio available to monitor severe weather information

●  Online weather information—http://www.weather.gov/grb

●  Smart phone app to monitor the weather and receive warnings

Two-way communication:

●  Get information from your weather watchers

●  Get the word out to family members, your employees, and spectators/participants

Be proactive.

Establish sheltering/response criteria:

●  Based on watches, warnings, reports, other?

●  Consider how much time you need for people to reach shelter

How will action be initiated?

●  Means of communication

●  Backup plan

Where will people go?

Appropriate shelter? Recommended safe rooms:

●  Interior of building

●  Room without windows

●  Roof tied to walls; walls tied to foundation

●  Protection from “missiles” (flying objects)

●  FEMA safe room guidelines—http://www.fema.gov/safe-rooms

●  NWS school/building safety—http://www.weather.gov/grb/schools

Enough space?

●  Visitors, especially large groups

●  People leading the group must have and know the safety plan

●  Enough time to get there

●  How will you communicate an “all-clear”?

Effective Severe Weather Planning Strategy

for Families, Large Outdoor Events, and Businesses

Use this guide to develop a weather safety plan. Address each weather threat as it applies to your home, your 

location and your employees (flood, hail, blizzard, extreme heat/cold, tornado, and extreme wind).

Plan

Monitor

Act

Practice





 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 

Winnebago County 
The Wave of the Future 

 
 

DATE:  September 26, 2022 
FROM:  Parks and Expo Director 
RE: Notice of Intent to Acquire a WI DOT Parcel Located Adjacent to the WIOUWASH TRAIL.  
 
 

General Description: The Parks Department is interested in acquiring a WI DOT owned parcel adjacent 

to the WIOUWASH trail within the Town of Oshkosh.  

Requested Action:  

The Parks Department recommends that the Parks and Recreation Committee submits the intent to 

purchase to the WI DOT. 

Procedural Steps: 

Parks and Recreation Committee  Meeting date:  9/26/22 
 Action taken:     Vote:   

 Personnel and Finance Committee  Meeting Date: 10/6/22 

 Action Taken     Vote: 

 County Board     Meeting Date:  10/18/22 

 Action Taken     Vote: 

Background: 

In 2021, the Town of Oshkosh attended a Parks and Recreation Committee meeting. They informed the 

Parks and Recreation Committee that they were having issues with fishermen parking their trucks and 

trailers on Edgewood Lane in order to access Lake Butte des Morts within the Town of Oshkosh. The 

Town of Oshkosh requested that the Winnebago County Parks Department consider acquiring a parcel 

by Westwind Road in order to construct a parking lot to allow for more access to Lake Butte des Morts. 

Justification: 

The Winnebago County Parks Department has many users that utilize the WIOUWASH Trail on a yearly 

basis. The WIOUWASH Trail accommodates walkers, runners, bikers, horseback riders, and snowmobiles 

throughout the year.  The most popular trail head is the Westwind Road Trail head. This trail head can 

only accommodate roughly 6-8 cars. It can only fit 6 trucks with trailers during the snowmobile season. 

By building a parking lot on this parcel it will also allow more users to access Lake Butte des Morts to 

fish, view wild life, and launch a kayak or small boat that can be carried in by hand or cart. The Parks 

Department wishes to work with the Town of Oshkosh to acquire this property, create a link to the 

WIOUWASH Trail and construct a gravel parking lot. 

This letter of intent does not have a price for the parcel. The WI DOT would determine the price in the 

future.  



Attachments: 

• WI DOT Notice of Intent to Purchase Letter with Site Maps 

• Resolution to Approve the letter with an intent to purchase the WI DOT parcel located 

within the Town of Oshkosh. 



Resolution Number: 181-062021 Page 1  

1   

2 RESOLUTION: Authorize the Winnebago County Parks Department to Submit a Notice of 
Intent to Acquire a Wisconsin Department of Transportation Parcel 
Located Adjacent to the WIOUWASH TRAIL to the Wisconsin Department 
of Transportation. 

3   
4   

5   

6 TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 

7 WHEREAS, Winnebago County Parks Department was approached by the Town of Oshkosh in 
 

8 2021 in regards to parking and access issues for Lake Butte des Morts; and, 

9 WHEREAS, Lake Butte des Morts and the WIOUWASH Trail are utilized by both residents across 

10 Winnebago County and non-residents; and, 

11 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Parks Department proposes acquiring a remnant parcel from 

12 the Wisconsin Department of Transportation along Lake Buttes des Morts drive for the purpose of 

13 constructing a parking lot to provide more access to the WIOUWASH Trail and Lake Butte des 

14 Morts. 

23 

24 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it  

25 hereby authorizes the Winnebago County Parks Department to submit the letter of intent to the 

26 Wisconsin Department of Transportation to acquire the parcel located adjacent to the WIOUWASH 

27 Trail within the Town of Oshkosh. 

29 

30 Fiscal note: At this time there is no fiscal impact to submitting our letter of intent. The Wisconsin 

31 Department of Transportation has not indicated how much they will sell the parcel for or if it will be given to 

32 Winnebago County for no cost to support the public use of the property and the WIOUWASH Trail. A 

33 parking lot would need to be constructed in the future. The Winnebago County Parks Department 

34 proposed partnering with the Town of Oshkosh on this project. 

35  

33 

34 Respectfully Submitted by, 

35 Committee Vote: PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 

36 

37 



Resolution Number: 181-062021 Page 2  

38 

39 
 

40 

41 Committee Vote:  

42 

Respectfully Submitted by, 

 
 
PERSONNEL & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

43 Vote Requirement for Passage: Majority 

44 Approved by Winnebago County Executive this  day of  , 2022. 

45 
 

46 
 

47 Jonathan D. Doemel 
48 Winnebago County Executive 

49 

50 

51 



 

Division of Transportation  
System Development 
Northeast Regional Office 
944 Vanderperren Way 
Green Bay, WI  54304 

 Governor Tony Evers 

Secretary Craig Thompson 

wisconsindot.gov 

 
Telephone:  (920)492-5643 

Facsimile (FAX):  (920)492-5640 
E-mail:  ner.dtsd@dot.wi.gov  

 
 

 
September 16, 2022 

 

 

Winnebago County Board Chair 

Tom Egan 

3017 State Rd 116 

Omro, WI 54963 

 

PROJECT I.D.  6200-05-24 

STH 110 

Winnebago County 

 

The Wisconsin Department of Transportation owns a parcel of surplus land in your jurisdiction that we are 

planning to dispose of.  In accordance with Wisconsin Statue 84.09(5)(c) we contact the local municipalities and 

the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources prior to advertising the property for public sale. The location 

of the property is highlighted on the enclosed map.  

 

Please sign below and return this letter in the enclosed envelope indicating whether or not you are interested in 

purchasing the property by November 16, 2022. Lack of a response within the required timeframe will constitute 

your non-interest. 

 

If you have any questions concerning this matter, you may contact me at (920) 492-5651. 

 

Thank you for your cooperation. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Kim Lesperance 

Real Estate Specialist – Consultant 

Northeast Region 

Kim.lesperance@dot.wi.gov 

920-492-5651 

 

I,     do not wish to purchase the subject 

property from the Wisconsin Department of Transportation. 

 

I,    wish to purchase the subject 

property from the Wisconsin Department of Transportation. 

 

Cc:  Dr. Bryan Davis, Superintendent Oshkosh Area School District 

Jon Doemel, Winnebago County Executive 

 Jim Erdman, Oshkosh Town Board Chair 

Renee Kerska, Real Estate Specialist for the Dept. of Natural Resources 

  

mailto:ner.dtsd@dot.wi.gov
mailto:Kim.lesperance@dot.wi.gov


MSCK2L
Polygon





MSCK2L
Polygon



PARKS 
General Fund – Division: 065 

2023 BUDGET NARRATIVE 
 

 

 

DEPARTMENT HEAD: Adam Breest                                                                                                                                   TELEPHONE: (920) 232-1961  

LOCATION: Winnebago County Parks Department 

 James P. Coughlin Center 

 625 East County Road Y, Suite 500 

 Oshkosh, WI  54901 

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT: 

 

To provide for the physical maintenance and development of County-owned park lands; facilitate recreational programming; promote and encourage the 

recreational use of the County-owned park lands and facilities; provide access to, and navigation aids for, the major bodies of water; provide multi-use 

recreation trails; and promote the use of the County Exposition grounds for the annual County Fair and other special events. 

 

 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

 

PARKS:  Provide park sites that can serve as a destination with enough and varied support facilities to provide for a daylong recreation experience on the site. 

 

BOAT LANDINGS:  Provide quality boat launch sites on major bodies of water that possess site amenities and can serve as day use park sites for boaters and 

non-boaters alike. 

 

NAVIGATION AIDS:  Mark major navigational channels throughout the Winnebago County lakes system with both lighted and unlighted buoys to assist 

boaters in reaching their destination safely. 

 

RECREATION TRAILS:  Provide multipurpose trail corridors through ownership and leasing for a variety of recreational and transit-oriented opportunities. 

 

EXPO CENTER:  Provide a facility where a wide variety of events, festivals, competitive shows and meeting/training sessions can occur. 

 

PRESERVATION AND CONSERVATION AREAS:  Provide for perpetuation of sensitive lands and areas of historical, archaeological or vegetative 

significance. 



PARKS 
General Fund – Division: 065 

2023 BUDGET NARRATIVE 
 

 

DEPARTMENT HEAD: Adam Breest                                                                                                                                  TELEPHONE: (920) 232-1961  

LOCATION: Winnebago County Parks Department 

    James P. Coughlin Center 

         625 East County Road Y, Suite 500  

 Oshkosh, WI 54901 

2022 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  

1. Completed the Sunnyview Exposition East Campus Improvements (Phase 1). These improvements more than doubled the number of electric 

camping areas, added site security, and provided storm water improvements to the site. This will provide a benefit to all of our events.  

2. County Board approved funding to replace existing lighting with LED lights, improve the driveway, and install gutters in the equestrian complex at 

the Sunnyview Exposition Center. 

3. Offered paid camping opportunities at the Sunnyview Exposition Center for the week of AirVenture 

4. Entered into a contract with Cumulus Radio to renew their sponsorship at the Sunnyview Exposition Center for another 3 years.  

5. Maintained a consistent and growing monthly e-newsletter. 

6. Completed the Jerry Finch Winnebago County Dog Park in Fox Crossing and hosted a ribbon cutting. 

7. Worked with OYSC to install drain tile on soccer fields 1 and 2 within the Community Park.  

8. Worked with the County HWY Department to reconstruct the 4 parking lots located within the soccer complex at the Community Park. 

9. Hired GRAEF Engineering to being the design and permitting work for the Grundman Boat Landing. The County was awarded a $400,000 grant 

from the NRDA and applied for a $900,000 grant with the WI DNR. 

10. The Parks and Recreation Committee approved the master plan for the improvements at the Waukau Dam. 

11. Worked with the Health Department to host their COVID-19 vaccine and testing center.  

12. Lifest Promotions donated the installation of fiber optic cabling to the Sunnyview Exposition Center Stage and Press Box. 

13. Trail and car counters were installed on the WIOUWASH Trail, Mascoutin Trail, Grundman Boat Landing, and Butte des Morts Boat Landing. 



2023 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 

1. Improve the system for processing promoter contracts at the Sunnyview Exposition Center.  

2. Request funding for engineering services for the West Campus Improvements (Phase 2) at the Sunnyview Exposition Center. These improvements 

include the main parking lot, storm water management, and camping improvements.  

3. Hire a consultant and begin the process of creating the update to our Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan for 2024-2028. 

4. Increase the number of events we host at the Sunnyview Exposition Center. 

5. Work with Midwest Rentals to implement kayak rentals at the Asylum Bay Boat Landing.  

6. Launch a sponsorship program for the Sunnyview Exposition Center. 

7. Work with the County HWY Department to reconstruct more parking lots within the Community Park. 

8. Finish final engineering and complete the constructions and improvements to the Grundman Boat Landing. 

9. Request funding for an engineering firm to engineer and design the improvements to the Waukau Dam. 

10. Expanding programming and events at the Community Park.  

11. Address drainage issues at the Sunnyview Exposition Center and Community Park. 

12. Finalize the Wiouwash Trail swap with the City of Oshkosh.  



PARKS 
2023 BUDGET NARRATIVE 

HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 
DEPARTMENT STAFFING: 
 
There is no change to the staffing table for 2023. The Table of Organization of Classified Positions can be found in the Overview section. 
 
COUNTY LEVY:    
 
The 2023 net levy is $1,368,295, a decrease of $12 or 0.00% under 2022. A schedule of significant changes follows. 
 

 
 

 

 (10,000)

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Change in levy from prior year

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

% Change from prior year



Account  Amount Description

Significant changes from 2022

Tax Levy 2022  $ 1,368,307 

Significant changes to revenues:

Rental Revenues         (13,500) Increase for adding special event fees in Community Parks ($3,500) and an increase in Exposition 

rentals anticipated ($10,000).

Donations         (10,500) Increase based on budgeting bench and tree donations in the Administration account ($3,700), the 

1,000 hours program in the Community Park account ($5,000), and potential revenue for a memorial 

bench in the Recreational Trails account ($1,800).

Landfill Fees            8,500 Decrease as Landfill Fees have been moved to the Rental Revenues account.

Significant changes to expenses:

Health Insurance         (13,214) Decrease based on enrollment changes in the department.

Motor Fuel            6,500 Increase based on diesel fuel cost increases.

Building Rental           (5,000) Decrease as 2022 was a one-time expense for stage rental.

Maintenance Grounds - interfund         (15,000) Decreased to meet levy target. Parks will perform less trail rehab work in 2023.

Heat            9,050 Increase in heat expenses at the beginning of 2022 and will continue into 2023.

Grounds Maintenance          20,671 Increase for contract services in the Community Parks expense (Roundabouts - $4,000), reflecting 

actuals and including mowing costs in the Recreation Trails expenses ($7,750), and an overall 

increase based on history for Navigation Aids expenes ($8,921).

Professional Service         (16,000) Decrease based on no engineering costs for 2023 (Administration - $1,000,  Community Parks 

$5,000, Recreational Trails $5,000, and Expo $5,000).

Other small changes          28,481 This is a combination of small increases and decreases to revenue and expense accounts. 

Tax Levy 2023  $ 1,368,295 

Account  Amount Description

Capital - Equipment          95,000 Increase to purchase a replacement mower using general fund undesignated fund balance.

Professional Services          35,000 This account has a net increase of $19,000 - a decrease of $16,000 is within the tax levy above. A 

one-time expense request for the Parks Department to complete the Comprehensive Outdoor 

Recreation Plan, which will use general fund undesignated fund balance.

General Fund Balance Applied 2023  $    130,000 

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES FROM 2022 ADOPTED - Parks



2022 2022 2022 2022 2023

6-Month 12-Month Adopted Adjusted Executive

Items Actual Estimate Budget Budget Budget

Total Revenues 137,627         315,572         313,243         317,064         325,173         

Labor 414,677         921,907         931,907         931,907         936,565         

Travel 3,833             3,811             3,500             3,500             4,175             

Capital 51,359           110,180         50,000           110,963         145,000         

Other Expenditures 289,795         722,233         696,143         747,644         737,728         

Total Expenditures 759,664         1,758,131      1,681,550      1,794,014      1,823,468      

Levy Before Fund Balance Adjustment 1,368,307      1,498,295      

General Fund Balance Applied -                     (130,000)        

Net Levy After Fund Balance Adjustment 1,368,307      1,368,295      

Financial Summary
Parks (Excludes Boat Launch)



Description Object

 2019

Actual

 2020

Actual

 2021

Actual

 2022

Adopted

 2022

Revised

 2022

Projected

 2023

Request

 2023

Executive

% Change 

From Prior Yr 

Adopted

WI Dept of Administration 42002 0 20,777 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

WI Natural Resources 42009 51,100 51,478 41,526 41,250 43,230 30,000 43,230 43,230 4.80%

Other Grantor Agencies 42019 30,000 0 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

81,100 72,255 191,526 41,250 43,230 30,000 43,230 43,230 4.80%

Other Fees 45002 0 0 0 2,943 2,943 2,943 2,943 2,943 0.00%

Rental Revenues 45011 209,040 39,705 182,126 200,000 200,000 213,500 213,500 213,500 6.75%

Restitution 45022 150 0 0 50 50 0 0 0 -100.00%

Donations 45034 1,000 5,382 7,872 1,700 3,541 5,871 12,200 12,200 617.65%

Concession Revenue 45050 35,701 7,623 45,209 32,300 32,300 27,900 27,800 27,800 -13.93%

Park Reservations 45056 15,535 60 20,280 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 0.00%

261,426 52,770 255,487 251,993 253,834 265,214 271,443 271,443 7.72%

Other Fees 43001 7,924 10,484 0 3,000 3,000 0 0 0 -100.00%

Landfill Fees 43010 0 320 1,870 8,500 8,500 0 0 0 -100.00%

7,924 10,804 1,870 11,500 11,500 0 0 0 -100.00%

350,449 135,829 448,883 304,743 308,564 295,214 314,673 314,673 3.26%

Winnebago County

Budget Detail - 2023

Division     - 065 - Parks

Revenue

Intergov Rev:

Intergov Rev Subtotal:

Public Services:

Public Services Subtotal:

Intergov Services:

Intergov Services Subtotal:

Total Operating Revenue:



Description Object

 2019

Actual

 2020

Actual

 2021

Actual

 2022

Adopted

 2022

Revised

 2022

Projected

 2023

Request

 2023

Executive

% Change 

From Prior Yr 

Adopted

Winnebago County

Budget Detail - 2023

Division     - 065 - Parks

Sale Of Prop Equip 48104 0 6,745 0 2,000 2,000 8,740 4,000 4,000 100.00%

Sale of Scrap 48106 0 112 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 48109 1,084 2,940 4,782 5,000 5,000 10,118 5,000 5,000 0.00%

ATM Revenue 48111 0 0 386 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 0.00%

1,084 9,797 5,168 8,500 8,500 20,358 10,500 10,500 23.53%

1,084 9,797 5,168 8,500 8,500 20,358 10,500 10,500 23.53%

351,533 145,625 454,050 313,243 317,064 315,572 325,173 325,173 3.81%

Regular Pay 51100 472,172 541,132 536,593 576,549 576,549 576,549 594,059 594,059 3.04%

Temporary Employees 51101 75,910 77,964 37,447 70,000 70,000 60,000 70,000 70,000 0.00%

Overtime 51105 5,122 3,075 7,511 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 0.00%

Comp Time 51108 2,024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

555,228 622,171 581,552 651,549 651,549 641,549 669,059 669,059 2.69%

FICA Medicare 51200 41,076 45,602 43,137 49,844 49,844 49,844 51,184 51,184 2.69%

Health Insurance 51201 131,854 136,207 139,845 172,905 172,905 172,905 159,691 159,691 -7.64%

Dental Insurance 51202 6,871 6,997 7,281 9,044 9,044 9,044 8,305 8,305 -8.17%

Workers Compensation 51203 5,686 3,530 6,706 8,301 8,301 8,301 5,105 5,105 -38.50%

Misc Revenues:

Misc Revenues Subtotal:

Total Non-Operating Revenue:

Revenue Total:

Expense

Wages:

Wages Subtotal:

Fringes Benefits:



Description Object

 2019

Actual

 2020

Actual

 2021

Actual

 2022

Adopted

 2022

Revised

 2022

Projected

 2023

Request

 2023

Executive

% Change 

From Prior Yr 

Adopted

Winnebago County

Budget Detail - 2023

Division     - 065 - Parks

Unemployment Comp 51204 0 240 (240) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

WI Retirement 51206 29,948 35,647 34,185 36,966 36,966 36,966 39,827 39,827 7.74%

Fringe Benefits Other 51207 3,071 3,360 2,494 3,298 3,298 3,298 3,394 3,394 2.91%

218,507 231,583 233,408 280,358 280,358 280,358 267,506 267,506 -4.58%

773,736 853,754 814,959 931,907 931,907 921,907 936,565 936,565 0.50%

Registration Tuition 52001 1,891 1,451 778 1,200 1,200 2,287 2,000 2,275 89.58%

Automobile Allowance 52002 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Meals 52005 255 0 0 300 300 120 300 300 0.00%

Lodging 52006 1,975 0 0 2,000 2,000 1,404 1,600 1,600 -20.00%

Other Travel Exp 52007 355 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Taxable Benefit 52008 29 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

4,518 1,451 778 3,500 3,500 3,811 3,900 4,175 19.29%

4,518 1,451 778 3,500 3,500 3,811 3,900 4,175 19.29%

Land 58000 309,285 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Improvements 58002 116,238 16,155 409,748 0 60,963 60,963 0 0 0.00%

Equipment 58004 133,186 156,050 262,531 50,000 50,000 49,217 50,000 145,000 190.00%

558,709 172,205 672,279 50,000 110,963 110,180 50,000 145,000 190.00%

558,709 172,205 672,279 50,000 110,963 110,180 50,000 145,000 190.00%

Fringes Benefits Subtotal:

Total Labor:

Travel:

Travel Subtotal:

Total Travel:

Capital Outlay:

Capital Outlay Subtotal:

Total Capital:



Description Object

 2019

Actual

 2020

Actual

 2021

Actual

 2022

Adopted

 2022

Revised

 2022

Projected

 2023

Request

 2023

Executive

% Change 

From Prior Yr 

Adopted

Winnebago County

Budget Detail - 2023

Division     - 065 - Parks

Office Supplies 53000 940 800 1,128 800 800 912 900 900 12.50%

Stationery and Forms 53001 195 22 26 100 100 100 100 100 0.00%

Printing Supplies 53002 181 98 170 200 200 500 200 200 0.00%

Print Duplicate 53003 0 0 0 50 50 0 50 50 0.00%

Postage and Box Rent 53004 74 3 193 100 100 200 200 200 0.00%

Computer Software 53006 0 0 6,180 5,300 5,300 5,452 5,600 5,600 5.66%

Telephone 53008 5,594 7,213 8,585 6,700 6,700 8,200 8,200 8,200 22.39%

Print Duplicate 73003 2,389 1,514 1,019 2,400 2,400 2,026 2,000 2,000 -16.67%

Postage and Box Rent 73004 211 89 39 400 400 100 200 200 -50.00%

Computer Licensing Charge 73006 0 0 0 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,601 1,601 -5.82%

9,584 9,740 17,341 17,750 17,750 19,190 19,051 19,051 7.33%

Advertising 53500 8,887 7,079 1,342 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 0.00%

Subscriptions 53501 0 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 0.00%

Membership Dues 53502 1,017 1,062 1,196 1,300 1,300 1,000 1,300 1,300 0.00%

Household Supplies 53516 0 4,205 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Uniforms Tools Allowance 53517 583 1,690 817 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0.00%

Food 53520 87 0 0 100 100 92 100 100 0.00%

Small Equipment 53522 28,524 18,643 11,204 27,850 29,691 29,935 30,100 30,100 8.08%

Recreation Supplies 53529 27,907 1,089 21,124 27,500 27,500 25,000 25,000 25,000 -9.09%

Other Operating Supplies 53533 1,594 2,145 1,215 1,050 1,050 1,717 1,550 1,550 47.62%

Motor Fuel 53548 10,060 5,560 12,849 10,000 10,000 16,500 16,500 16,500 65.00%

Building Rental 53550 0 0 0 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 -100.00%

Equipment Rental 53551 6,608 4,672 6,471 5,850 5,850 6,750 6,750 6,750 15.38%

Operating Licenses Fees 53553 686 953 605 1,070 1,070 645 770 770 -28.04%

Office:

Office Subtotal:

Operating:



Description Object

 2019

Actual

 2020

Actual

 2021

Actual

 2022

Adopted

 2022

Revised

 2022

Projected

 2023

Request

 2023

Executive

% Change 

From Prior Yr 

Adopted

Winnebago County

Budget Detail - 2023

Division     - 065 - Parks

Property Taxes 53562 2,978 134 6 140 140 0 0 0 -100.00%

Small Equipment Technology 53580 0 6,448 1,156 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Motor Fuel 73548 11,924 9,478 11,395 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 0.00%

100,855 63,307 69,530 97,510 99,351 99,289 99,720 99,720 2.27%

Maintenance Buildings 54020 22,183 19,600 13,315 13,000 13,000 17,000 16,000 16,000 23.08%

Maintenance Grounds 54021 21,664 25,215 14,025 20,500 20,500 17,500 20,500 20,500 0.00%

Maintenance Equipment 54022 2,409 3,515 7,216 19,000 19,000 19,350 19,350 19,350 1.84%

Maintenance Vehicles 54023 0 0 180 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Sign Parts Supplies 54027 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Other Maint Supplies 54028 0 0 0 100 100 100 100 100 0.00%

Equipment Repairs 54029 0 2,218 301 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Maintenance Grounds 74021 48,901 29,519 36,047 48,000 48,000 48,000 33,000 33,000 -31.25%

Maintenance Vehicles 74023 0 0 0 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 0.00%

Technology Repair and Maintain 74029 46,750 29,539 28,739 396 396 396 363 363 -8.33%

141,908 109,666 99,823 145,996 145,996 147,346 134,313 134,313 -8.00%

Heat 54700 20,178 16,249 23,010 24,250 24,250 33,300 33,300 33,300 37.32%

Power and Light 54701 77,771 56,416 78,011 89,700 89,700 80,700 86,660 86,660 -3.39%

Water and Sewer 54702 93,054 82,084 95,979 100,000 100,000 95,500 101,000 101,000 1.00%

Refuse Collection 54703 (3,437) 2,349 12,106 14,500 14,500 14,600 14,900 14,900 2.76%

Refuse Collection 74703 487 620 75 1,100 1,100 0 0 0 -100.00%

188,053 157,719 209,181 229,550 229,550 224,100 235,860 235,860 2.75%

Operating Subtotal:

Repairs & Maint:

Repairs & Maint Subtotal:

Utilities:

Utilities Subtotal:



Description Object

 2019

Actual

 2020

Actual

 2021

Actual

 2022

Adopted

 2022

Revised

 2022

Projected

 2023

Request

 2023

Executive

% Change 

From Prior Yr 

Adopted

Winnebago County

Budget Detail - 2023

Division     - 065 - Parks

Medical and Dental 55000 2,149 468 927 3,000 3,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 -33.33%

Pest Extermination 55002 475 0 210 300 300 300 300 300 0.00%

Vehicle Repairs 55005 8,670 7,450 2,365 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 0.00%

Grounds Maintenance 55007 82,783 92,131 84,429 120,329 122,309 118,000 141,000 141,000 17.18%

Building Repairs 55008 10,337 13,674 14,688 15,000 15,000 15,000 17,000 17,000 13.33%

Professional Service 55014 14,045 26,801 2,958 16,000 63,680 46,500 0 35,000 118.75%

Janitorial Services 55016 2,735 4,700 4,501 3,800 3,800 5,100 5,100 5,100 34.21%

Management Services 55020 0 98 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Security Service 55028 2,742 10,578 3,151 2,500 2,500 1,000 2,500 2,500 0.00%

123,935 155,901 113,229 167,929 217,589 194,900 174,900 209,900 24.99%

Prop Liab Insurance 76000 19,608 20,388 31,836 37,408 37,408 37,408 38,884 38,884 3.95%

19,608 20,388 31,836 37,408 37,408 37,408 38,884 38,884 3.95%

583,944 516,720 540,940 696,143 747,644 722,233 702,728 737,728 5.97%

1,920,907 1,544,130 2,028,957 1,681,550 1,794,014 1,758,130 1,693,193 1,823,468 8.44%

(1,569,374) (1,398,505) (1,574,906) (1,368,307) (1,476,950) (1,442,558) (1,368,020) (1,498,295) 9.50%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 130,000 100.00%

(1,569,374) (1,398,505) (1,574,906) (1,368,307) (1,476,950) (1,442,558) (1,368,020) (1,368,295) 0.00%

General Fund Balance Applied:

Parks Net/(Levy):

Contractual Services:

Contractual Services Subtotal:

Insurance Expenses:

Insurance Expenses Subtotal:

Total Other Operating:

Expense Total:

Parks Net/(Levy):



Department Description Quantity Unit Cost Capital Outlay

Parks -

Admin - Vehicle 1 50,000      50,000                

Replacement Mower 1 95,000      95,000                

2 145,000              

WINNEBAGO COUNTY

CAPITAL OUTLAY - 2023



BOAT LANDING 
2023 BUDGET NARRATIVE 

HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 
 
DESCRIPTION:   
 
The Boat Launch Fee program is a program that started several years ago.  The County instituted a fee for people to launch boats onto Winnebago County waterways.  
The intent of this was to establish a program that would fund the maintenance of the boat launch’s, docks and other boating related facilities therefore removing it 
from the general tax levy.  
 
COUNTY LEVY:  
 
There is no tax levy for this function.  It is self-supporting from boat launch fees. 
 
 
FUND BALANCE:  
 
A fund balance roll-forward schedule can be viewed in the Overview section of the budget book.  It is listed as Fund Projections in the table of contents. 
 
    
       



Account  Amount Description

Significant changes from 2022

2022 Budgeted Surplus (Deficit)  $     14,043 

Revenue Changes - impact on surplus:

Boat Launching Fees        (10,000) Decrease based on actuals for the past three years.

Expense Changes - impact on surplus:

Equipment Rental          (5,000) Increase based on actuals for the past three years, for portable toilets which were never budgeted 

for.

Other small changes           2,425 This is a combination of small increases and decreases to revenue and expense accounts. 

2023 Budgeted Surplus (Deficit)  $       1,468 

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES FROM 2022 ADOPTED -  Boat Landing



2022 2022 2022 2022 2023

6-Month 12-Month Adopted Adjusted Executive

Items Actual Estimate Budget Budget Budget

Total Revenues 46,299           110,000         120,000         120,000         110,000         

Labor 3,169             12,042           12,042           12,042           12,042           

Travel -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Capital -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Other Expenditures 15,620           75,000           93,915           93,915           96,490           

Total Expenditures 18,789           87,042           105,957         105,957         108,532         

(Surplus) / Deficit before adjustments (14,043)          (1,468)            

 Increase / (Decrease) fund balance 14,043           1,468             

Net (Surplus) / Deficit after adjustments -                     -                     

Financial Summary
Boat Landing



Description Object

 2019

Actual

 2020

Actual

 2021

Actual

 2022

Adopted

 2022

Revised

 2022

Projected

 2023

Request

 2023

Executive

% Change 

From Prior Yr 

Adopted

Boat Launching Fees 44106 123,402 113,112 105,639 120,000 120,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 -8.33%

123,402 113,112 105,639 120,000 120,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 -8.33%

123,402 113,112 105,639 120,000 120,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 -8.33%

123,402 113,112 105,639 120,000 120,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 -8.33%

Temporary Employees 51101 7,006 4,197 9,003 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 0.00%

7,006 4,197 9,003 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 0.00%

FICA Medicare 51200 536 321 689 842 842 842 842 842 0.00%

Workers Compensation 51203 76 25 116 200 200 200 200 200 0.00%

612 346 805 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 0.00%

7,619 4,543 9,807 12,042 12,042 12,042 12,042 12,042 0.00%Total Labor:

Wages Subtotal:

Fringes Benefits:

Fringes Benefits Subtotal:

Revenue Total:

Expense

Wages:

Fines and Permits:

Fines and Permits Subtotal:

Total Operating Revenue:

Winnebago County

Budget Detail - 2023

Department   - 070 - Boat Landing

Revenue



Description Object

 2019

Actual

 2020

Actual

 2021

Actual

 2022

Adopted

 2022

Revised

 2022

Projected

 2023

Request

 2023

Executive

% Change 

From Prior Yr 

Adopted

Winnebago County

Budget Detail - 2023

Department   - 070 - Boat Landing

Office Supplies 53000 0 26 21 50 50 50 50 50 0.00%

Stationery and Forms 53001 7,405 6,379 3,834 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 0.00%

Postage and Box Rent 53004 0 0 110 200 200 200 200 200 0.00%

7,405 6,405 3,965 4,750 4,750 4,750 4,750 4,750 0.00%

Advertising 53500 0 0 0 500 500 500 500 500 0.00%

Small Equipment 53522 2,536 2,793 0 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 0.00%

Equipment Rental 53551 5,452 4,500 4,995 0 0 5,000 5,000 5,000 100.00%

Motor Fuel 73548 0 0 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 0.00%

7,988 7,293 4,995 6,500 6,500 11,500 11,500 11,500 76.92%

Maintenance Buildings 54020 83 58 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Maintenance Grounds 54021 2,315 1,503 202 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0.00%

Maintenance Equipment 54022 0 0 41 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0.00%

Maintenance Grounds 74021 18,425 41,703 123 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

20,823 43,264 367 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 0.00%

Power and Light 54701 7,306 7,182 7,091 7,250 7,250 7,250 7,250 7,250 0.00%

Water and Sewer 54702 606 482 805 500 500 500 500 500 0.00%

7,912 7,664 7,896 7,750 7,750 7,750 7,750 7,750 0.00%

Repairs & Maint Subtotal:

Utilities:

Utilities Subtotal:

Operating:

Operating Subtotal:

Repairs & Maint:

Office:

Office Subtotal:



Description Object

 2019

Actual

 2020

Actual

 2021

Actual

 2022

Adopted

 2022

Revised

 2022

Projected

 2023

Request

 2023

Executive

% Change 

From Prior Yr 

Adopted

Winnebago County

Budget Detail - 2023

Department   - 070 - Boat Landing

Grounds Maintenance 55007 17,901 16,387 91,007 63,915 63,915 40,000 61,490 61,490 -3.79%

Professional Service 55014 151,197 91,089 24,524 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

169,098 107,476 115,530 63,915 63,915 40,000 61,490 61,490 -3.79%

213,227 172,102 132,754 93,915 93,915 75,000 96,490 96,490 2.74%

220,846 176,645 142,561 105,957 105,957 87,042 108,532 108,532 2.43%

(97,444) (63,532) (36,922) 14,043 14,043 22,958 1,468 1,468 -89.55%

NOTE: A deficit will result in a draw down of fund balance. A surplus will increase the ending fund balance.

Expense Total:

Boat Landing Net Surplus (Deficit):

Contractual Services:

Contractual Services Subtotal:

Total Other Operating:



PARKS

PROGRAM BUDGETS

2023 2022

TRAVEL & OTHER TOTAL 2023 2022 2021 OVER OVER

NAME ORG LABOR MEETINGS CAPITAL EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXECUTIVE ADOPTED ADOPTED 2022 2021

Administration 1065 936,565  4,175          145,000  218,283       1,304,023    12,343          1,291,680     1,146,322  1,155,021  12.68 (0.75)

Community Parks 1066 -              -                  -              89,130         89,130         25,300          63,830          70,630       66,600       (9.63) 6.05

Recreation Trails 1067 -              -                  -              83,426         83,426         45,030          38,396          51,030       65,104       (24.76) (21.62)

Navigational Aids 1068 -              -                  -              83,100         83,100         83,100          74,179       22,000       12.03 237.18

Exhibition Site 1069 -              -                  -              263,789       263,789       242,500        21,289          26,146       57,542       (18.58) (54.56)

Boat Landing 1070 12,042    -                  -              96,490         108,532       110,000        (1,468)           (14,043)      183,295     (89.55) (107.66)

Grand Totals 948,607  4,175          145,000  834,218       1,932,000    435,173        1,496,827     1,354,264  1,549,562  10.53 (12.60)

Back out boat launch 1,468            14,043       (183,295)    (89.55) (107.66)

General Fund Balance applied (130,000)       -                 (50,000)      0.00 (100.00)

Adjusted Levy 1,368,295 1,368,307 1,316,267 0.00 3.95

ANNUAL

TOTALS BY YEAR PERCENT INCREASES



Parks and Recreation Committee Upcoming Meetings 

October 24, 2022  3:30pm 
November 28, 2022 3:30pm 

December 26, 2022  
(Currently a Holiday) 

3:30pm 

January 23, 2022 3:30pm 
February 27, 2022 3:30pm 

March 27, 2022 3:30pm 
April 24, 2022  3:30pm 

May 22, 2022 3:30pm 
 


	PARKS Committee Meeting Agenda_9.26.22
	PARKS Committee Meeting Minutes_8.22.22
	PARKS County Board Survey Results
	PARKS MEMO Winnebagoland BMX 2022-2027 Contract
	PARKS RESOLUTION Winnebagoland BMX 2022-2027 Contract
	PARKS EC111622M BMX 5 Year Contract
	a8100334-e949-47ca-b69d-8c93dcbb1856.pdf
	edbc5c60-8281-49c1-b5ce-6e6ce35cb51f.pdf
	All Attachments_Expo Contracts
	Attachement_Fire Evac Ashes Vendors Electric Water
	Attachment_Fire Evacuation Plan
	Attachment_Disposing Ashes
	Attachment_Food Vendor Requirements
	Attachment_Indoor Vendor Requirements
	Attachment_Electric and Water Hook-up Procedures


	Severe Weather Planning



	PARKS MEMO WI DOT Notice of Intent to Purchase Parcel
	PARKS RESOLUTION WI DOT Notice of Intent to Purchase Parcel
	PARKS - WI DOT Notice of Intent to Purchase Parcel
	PARKS Executive Budget Parks
	Parks Mission Statement
	Parks Accomplishments & Goals
	Parks Highlights
	Parks Significant Changes
	Parks Financial Summary
	Parks Budget Detail
	Parks Capital Outlay
	Boat Landing Highlights
	Boat Landing Significant Changes
	Boat Landing Financial Summary
	Boat Landing Budget Detail
	Parks Program Budgets

	PARKS Meeting Calendar Through May



